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Q. lam rather '11Ck with the readine. with which Tumour 
are accepted here ? 

I do not thim: there wa anything eculiar in· them.. Rn~ 
mOOrs start almost even'where, 

. In this case tl;ere ha.ve been ver many anests. thought 
tt e ramours seem to hu\'e been unfounded. ' 

. I think the a rr ". , of the l eader!~ at Arnrit. ar was rc pon~ible­
for this. 

Q. Have you an) doubt that t.he men in the crowd' were op­
po ed to the opening of shops? 

A. I had myself t reprimand people many timeR who, I knew, 
did not want that shop!" honld be opened. 

Q. Din it not arise :rom the disord erly portion of the crowd? 
" But I must sar nne thing: I did , at . ee these people u ing 

any (urce or threateuin!, people or ding any such thing. 
Q. It might have Ipen done and you might not have seen it ? 

But we \vere all working all the iml! in thi connection and if 
0, it must have been broutrb t to our notice. 

A a law-abidin citizen do YOll object to· a- man who was. 
preventing others from <;; sing their shops being arre ted? 

A. Th arrest itself in normal times woulc not oe objectionable­
but at a time like this when the least little tion was liable to be 
magnified this action "'" the part of the :lnthoritie wal' very inJudi­
cious. 

Bnt if you don'- "\rre t on man I'OU en oura e hundred. of 
oth r ? 

A, But on that (b~ all the shops in ihf' pl. ce had' al'ready been 
op ned and busin 9 wa going on and hr' W no fe. r of anything­
untowards happening. In the mornin r , Iso we :aw everal people 
s t \ling 1 orl'! but wt' tal ked to them fI ~ot them dispersed and 
nothing happened. 

. You had some tnmhle in conn lion vith [he RamiiTa affair? 
A. y ,. the troub:e aro e in con equence of the tb6ritie 

b in "ry much unfav r. ble to the Hindu communit amf they 
r sent d it ancl obs rved harlal for , m to or 11 davs. 

Q. It wa I beJie \,;' if 1 16. A. Yeo. . 

Hulq-ul-Mulk HakimAjmal Khan 
by Lord uIller th Hakim a eb aid that he dld not 

rRhn ae bad flO per onal knowlcd e of the-
30th. Th,. ked til people n t to observe harlal 001 
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he 6th but the peopJe in th if zeal for l)c' v one with the r t of 

India did obsel\Ve. .'\fter the l oth h with Dr. Ansari aod others 
Jtri d their best to et the bop opened. f !L firin" of the 17th he 
saw with hi owu . \. hit he \ t . comin ,Jul vf th Town Hall 
he saw a number of mt:o c ming from th e: Billi 'loria sid at a run­
ning pace and they were tired upon h n n tnb r o( t11 fl, whol1l h 
thought \ re PoliCt!men. prob.'lbly t prew I them from omitlg to 
that ·ide. .it t!tat time h did 1'1 t e nll)'OI . lr wing ston . H 
o(;ould n t se if tbe hl\d an ·thin • in th 'iT ' 1~· \(.lS. H did not see 
an one bein illed or wounded. His ilupr Jon as tb. l liring had 
been don over theiT heads. be ffi ial I bin th tOWIl h " had 
not iven the urder to ire and h dio nol ~_ ' J" h r IlI' Of1/> to iv 
.tb oed r t fire. Further que ti n d HnkH:'l ' a b .aid h' aw the 
.gun, be w the m 0 nd th fhin. 

ue tioo d by Mr. Justice R nken witn r. "~nri 
ihad ccompanicd bim to the town ball nd w • • 1 that time within. 

Th Hakim heb was then {. mined .it rr!lt I ngth by ir 
Cbilll nl 1 etalvad . h{~ said h and hi fa. II Y wcr ' th· Id qt in • 
• habitan s of elhi . H· eKotlrcis d. h~. aid, ~ me iuJlut'/\ ov r th 
people. Hi idea was that if the in ' idem at th SI(ltioo had not 

,happtm~d tht:r.:: would h. ~ . been no trouble ' ., elhi at all . . 

G.. Can you tell fRe what were the caus .; which mild' it po . i­
ble for tht:~e event t happ"? 

· Since Delhi became the Imp rial 'Ity p liticnl m()v rnents 
began. Thr u'll the luedium of ne \' pap~. a aei tion nd 
met'tiogs attempt were m de to waken the p' pi in a I gitimato 
·manner and effort were also milke to make p!:ople under land what 
was going on in tbe world. 

· What wa. the attitude of tbe local authorities towards thes 
movements ?- . They did not hke these movements. 

· What do you mean ?-A. The hief omllli sion'r I 
,mean Mr. Hailey and tb re ponsible officer of the Polio did ~ot 
,'ike these roo: ments. 

· nturally they did not like the lead rs who Ktarted this 
movement in Delhi:?-A Yes. 

· They did not like the idea of til , ongr; 58 being held 
bere ?-A. 'flley did n t so far as 1 am a ~are. 

Q. Did tbis create a ten ion bet cen the auth ritie and t e 
ubli and their leaders -A Ye. 

Q Then came tbe Rowlatt Bill agitation (allowing on thllt ? 
A. Yes, thit> came lG~g. But iD the O)t:antime we had great 
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difficulLy 
pt::ople. 

ill holding public mt:l:ting and that alsu irritated tho 

Q. Difficulties wert~ created in thl: way of your getting place ? 
\ I: were not alluwed tu hold meetings at placts where we 

thought we 'hould do. ince the 'editious Meetings Act was pro­
mulgat d we could not hold me lings but even before that. we had 
great difficulty. 

Q. Since whell ha.<; 010ne1 Beadoll been Deputy Commis ion 
cd-A. He had been here before Delhi became an lmperial City . 
His administration of 1unicipal affairs has bec:n very harsh and 
peopl wer very much anno)'ed in connecticn with hi~ action with 
regard to the Ramlila proces ion . Variou prosecutIOns were started, 
on was against Mr. Asaf Ali .md another again t Pundit Nekiram, 
for addrcssin 'om 111 ctings. But ther were acquitted. 

(. All this had pr duced a considerahle tension between the 
authoritie and the public r- :\. Yes. 

Q. Then in connection with the Rowlatt Bills. there was a 
gcn r I opposition throughout India to tht: e Bills ?-A. Yes. 

Lt was pposed by a111l0~1 'lll the members of tbe Indian 
Leglslall\' ouncil ?-A. Ye . 

Q. . \nd in conn 'ction with that there wt::re protest meeting in 
Ih1 ? 

Ve. 1 took p, rt 10 those me tings. 
~. What was the attitude of the authorities witb r g:ud to this 

matt r? 
A. I have no panicular knowledge a to their attttude with 

reg rd to this matler. 
re u\ of that the people were [lrone to view with u­

picion any a t of tbe officials ? 

, It hn I been for metime--for a month or two before 
M. rcb. 

I 0 you think that the ten i n f feeling between the 
:luth rities and the people contribut d in ome measure to the 
unfortunate ev nl of :larch nd April? 

I A, Yes, in orne me ure it was one of the factors. 
)0 reply to further que ti 0 the Hakim heb gave an ccount 

of th nt;gotiati Il which p between the autboritie and the 
leaders wi h regal'd to gi\Tiog ck the dead bodies of persons who 
h d n killed on the previous d)', the 30th, larch. 
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LAHORE SITTING - AMRITSAR BVIDBNOE. 

Mr. des Irving, 
c:py. C mm . of Amrit r in April] 

there lVas a u cel> 
month of Februar . 
. tty. p I nd Kicnlew 

111\ Itt'.' lahomcdilll in politi . Two 011:: 01 · 

CCl nllllll ee \Ve l e on thei I tri..ll. 
• h rt \" II th Ih. 1.11 h bUI there IVa no 

di.lulbatlce The loe,l! COllg;e. C IlllnllleCl IV gain t the 
h. t"rva llce: of "h I tal" un I he n' h. o f prtl bllt t th la I moment 

K u.hlew 311 3t 1P' l.WI· nil bI O I hI ab ut the h rt.1. IIe 
warller! t h e: ffict:r COmllld l1d l ll~ :1 11 .1 kept tro p. to Ie dine . 
BU I 110 act il,n Wd . fountl ne e . r} . The P lr e t d \\' Ith gre l 
fo,n ... IIJllce: TheIl.' \\ 11 0 att.ck m. de up 11 them dud they 
a\t'"1c::01 cornill~ In 1.01II"ct \~i {h pt'ople Afler the 6th of . pnl 
Ihill'l' _ o:emed to b "OlklO~ up III <--'Ill klllU f mi. 'hief .1Il1l til 
)(';lder, \ ere:: dl ,lp;lIln th., nw h Willi ~I vIe w to, he thought, 

O lllt' kllld ot cOllcenc::ci a tl on {(I 1J<llaly.e overUfllell1. BUl they 
d Id 1I0t encourd~e allY InlllIt'dld {C: act 01 vlO)ellce. n lire lh . 
.-\pn tt when the: Hanltlahdrnl pll ce 1011 wa pOI Ill" alollg thl' 
t\\lth bOld Halik here he \v." e.llee!, the: 1110 w.tS very ciVIl and 
\ 1tt'11 {he\ 3W wltlle. -, the band In the (; r pi yed II od ~lI\' e the 
Ku)g" Aft erwa rd onlr a number of Mahol1lf'da ll _ tuuenl mad 
),( 11I~ demon lr. t iou by lapplllg hal1rl aud marching lIke TUf ki h 
(, tlrt'l S. 

Deportation of Itcblew nd S tyapal. 
11 . Irving then de ribetl the tep to deport Kilchlew .InU 

• {yapd. They were Inlil d to \ Itne ' bung low and wer rem ved 
in rn ', ll r r t" haram ala, o n the Jot h of Aprrl. fi e then Wenl 
10 0 I.e od h d be n ther;: only for about h If II ho ur when 
1r. Plomer, (D .. P.) c me ridinJ! with the new th t rowd s 

\ ere collfctiog in the Altchi on Park. lIe found the telephone 
not orkltlg and then wt'nt out on hur ·back. At the fOClt of th 
rampart of the foot~brid e (which lead 10 lhe CIvil line) he fouod 
:I pi kc:t of 2 Indian and 3 Brili h roldier and in fronl f them 
wa a velY angry c rowd . H e {hen \ ellt Ivay. In the meanti e 
the cr wd had to be fired upon and wa pu hed back over the 
raih~ y line. He came back and (ound a very threatening crowd 
(cing a Slcull picket. He as rather reluctant to give order to 
fir but ultimat~ly had to do 50. 70 hot were fired. This wa 
.. - about 2 P.M. By that time the National Bank had een com· 
plelely destroyed. 
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The J&m&nw&l&bag Meeting. 
\Vitness then narrated the subsequent event of the loot and 

destruction of property, Government and private. Then on the 
11th and 12th. there was practically noth ing. On the 13th he 
said the situation conttnued to. be critical. 

Q. What was t~e attitude of the mob to~ ards the authoritie ? 
A. That the "Slrcar" wa at an end. The general rumour 

was, as I was informed, that Government was no longer in colltrol 
of the situation. 

\Vitness further aid: They proclaimed frorn .8 differel}l places 
that no meeting would be allowed. He then narrated the gentle (!! !) 
mea ures that had been taken to disperse Ihe meeting at tbe 
Jallianwalabagh. He added that as a result of this hooting the 
whole rebellion II) collapsed. Not only was the crowd fired IIpon 
al,rl rlipers d but its !Teel was telt throughout t he district. People 
a first believed that Government wa~ paralysed and could do 
nothing but thi came as a di illusionment. 

O. Call you form any opinion as to the intentiOIl of the mob 
with reference 10 the Government? 

A. The mob seriously thought I ha t it had a chan\:e o{ beating 
Government. ne of I he: ring.leader u ed to say 'let us fight It 

lit.' That wa the feeling from the lOth to 13th . 
WitDes aid further: After this there was nothing of a 

eriou nature rei orted. Variou false rumour were pread but 
he received a great deal of local help in counteracting the e. 
Jartial L w was proclaimed on the 15 th. He h d \lot applied 

for it. 
_ . What wa your opinion as to it nece sity ? 
A. I think il as quite neces ary. As a tIIat er of fact , it 

lI;p 0 f to" xi ed from the Lime the Military look control of 
the itualion. It wa very neces ary. 

• Under the Marti I Law \ h t as your position as Deputy 
Commi sion~r ? 

A. I regarded myself as adviser 10 the Mili tary Commander 
I w Iso reporting to my owo superiors. I would oat ask 
ower to be divided-one or other must be io charge. 

· Give u your iew as to who a r~lIy re pon ible for 
di turbance ? 

( • The people of Amrit r wa re ponsible and people who 
r i cd the feeling of the mob to the pitch Lhey did. 

· ou mean moral responsibility ?-A. Yes. 
_. III that sen e ou mean people were irre pon ible although 

I was nQ part of their intention tbat tbe acts of violence should 
follow? 

· Well ye. I told Dr. Kichlew that he as setting iD 
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motion Corces he could not control. J do not think a~y of these 
people at any time intended violence. They intended to fetter 
Government so as 10 submit to their demands. 

"VitDess said further tbat ODe or two of the men arrested were 
member of the Arya amaj and a an ors;tanisation it was more 
ulky but he had DO report against them. The people who did the 

lootlOg were Kasbmiri M homed n , HiDdu , K haltiyas and others. 
He slron~ly su peeted they were organi ed under leaders. 

Q. During the rebellion w there any intention of special 
hatred towards the Eur<>peans? 

A. Yes, it took Ib t form (rom the point the crowd was 
turned back. It as umed the b p 0 reveo e 00 Europe ns. 

Q. Wa aoy ho tility shown to overnm at erv nts • uch? 
A. No. The Police, ere doing their duty in the city but 

I have no records of overnmelll erv nts a u h being attacked. 
The wilne s then described the variou ill trumeot which had 

been used by I he mob to de troy property. He also gave a list 
()f those who had been ppointed by Ihe Military Commander to 
try certain ca e . 

He aid a number of European children had been ent to 
the hil'ls by the ~i\jtary AUlhoriti.e and the total mount expended 
on their pas age aud for their lay I here and return w Rs. 30,000. 

The witness was then examined by Mr. Justice R nken. 
He said: There was DO 5uch Idea as to a tack Europeans during 
the two days of the harta!. He pa cd lhrou¥h the city quite 
unattended and so had Mr. Jermalo, the MUOIcipal Engineer. 
There was persistent agitation upto the middle of March in course 
of which inflammatory language had been u ed but there was no in. 
cit at to riot Ot aoythin of th t 'Qrt. Tller_ re rem~e 

ugg. lion to v10lepce when Kilcnlew poke of "using our 
band's" but people often apeak more violently th n they mean and 
it was not their opinion th t immediate violence was intended. 
The leaders were against violence at tbe moment. 

8aty&(rahl1 and Violence. 
Q. 50 far as the Sacyagrahis themselves are concerned is 

it not the case tbat lbey deprecated violence? A. Yes. 
Q. Who were the chief 5atyagrahi at Amritl3f t 
A. I should' think. Kitcblew a\ld 5atyapal. But they were not 

distinguishable from the general agitator •• 
Q. I IUppose you know the principles of tbat partif::ular 

mov~ent as proteSied are contrary to violence rather than in 
(avour of it ? 

A. Yes, contrary to open violence. But aoy fOrln of passive 
.. aistance would eveotually ~ome to -'live violence. 

Q. Can you point to aoy fact which ,uBgests' that in the 
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beginning of April there . was any plot on the part of aov stratu m 
of society in Amritsar ' to encourage violence against European 
or to up-5e the local Government? 

y 

X. I cannot point to any ex.isting' before the loth of Apri l. 
l'tie only thing that comes in .my mind is the extraordinary speed in which various acts of violence were committed, almnst within an 
hour. This appears to he rhe work of orne form of or(Zanisatioll 

O. Would you tell me which are the acts of violence? 
A. Three banks which were fairly close together. a church 

and a school, were attacked and in anot her direct iOIl the telegraph 
office was atlackerl the very first thing. Then there was 3n auempt 
to cut -the Telegraph line which rat her ma rks an intelligence. 

. Q. But why do you think that the 'attack Oil the ban k wa 
evidence o! a previous organisat ion? 

A. I am not a ing that it is. I am puttin~ before yon . these 
facts 'v hich are coml?atible with some kino of organisat ion down 
below. It does not of COurse (oll ow that because there was aD 
attack on banks therefore there was an or{!anisatioo but there was 
ao organis~ tion existing and we knew of il al the time of the 
Municipal elections. (; 

Q' l Would it 1I0t be consistent wilb facts that the protest in 
force again t the depOt tat ion of Kitchlew and Satyapal soonten· 
eously'developed into violence !"I nd murder and incendiarism? 

A. Yes, I think it spontaneously developed: it flartd up ill 
a moment. T do not think people went out with that de ign . 

In an wer to further questions witnes said iml1ledialdy before 
their deportations at yapal 'and Kichlew were constantly addre' jng 
people. The order of deportalion came from above and he ,va 
not given any specific rea on . The e steps were not init iated at 
his request for he had come only recently and had not felt hi ' feet 
,bout at that time. As a maller of fact he did not nnke aoy 
recommendation , be wa simpl reportinJ,! things a they were. 
At ODe time he thought he could get Kichlew to be rea onable. 
He had as a m ller of fact quite early asked (the Government) to 
sl\spend < ction again l Kichlew to ee if he could bring him round. 
He knew nOlhing about these orders being in cOlltemplation b~fore ' 
he received them. He only kne\ that their conduct was under 
consideration of the Go ernment. On the evening of the Qth 
when he got the order of deportation, he recogni ed the possibility 
of sodle di tu rbance due to the deportations and pro\ided for three 
times but 'Unfortunately ten times happened. 

. Events of the 10th. I 

III reply to que lions put by ir Chitnaolal Setakad whnes 
aid that he was not in ' any 'manner connected with recruiting 
rom 1909 tb 19'7. He had no k.nowledge as to bo recruiting 
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a done. He wa during that period in the ecretariat. At 
Ihe time he came to Arndt ar ill February Dr. Satyapal aDd Dr. 
Kichlew were fairl popul r leader and their popularity grew 

the a italioD rew. 
Therefore t heir deportation u ed re entment in the 

mind of LI) publi? 
A: Well. it mi hl or it mighl 1I0t. When they arrested 

L la Lajp3f Rai in 1907 the italion ab o\utely collar ed. 
Th t rna' ha"e been o. Bu on the 1 th April in 1919 

thi o? 
Ye~. I \ a r pareo for it. 1 wa t king all 

po ible precaution 8 

\ hen the Crc\ d came 011 the r t 0 ca ion near that 
bridge, t hey were ("omin to your place? 

A: Ye, the ere comin to my hou e I under tood. 
They were comio Dot to m ke any oroin r prot st. \Vhen 
people come the come properly cl d. But the e men had 
pUl off their pUjlre and hoes and thev intended vi len e. 

Q: It might h ve been the i 1\ of mournin ? A. If it wa mOllrn ' ng, it wa Violent Inouming. 
_: Their prim ry object wa te come to you in connection 

with the deporldtion ? 
A: Cert iDly in connection with it. 

n that day were you pre 01 at the two firing? 
A : 0, only at one. I wa pre ent at th econd not 

t the fir t. I reframed from givlIlg the order to re becau e 
r recogni ed two men trying to dl per e the mob, Th y did 
their be t to di per e the mob. 

_ : ne was Mr. Gurlldayal Singh? 

him. 
A: Y , 1 met him in court but otherwise I did nol know 

Q: He tried to re train tbe crowd t COil iderable risk? 
A: Ye. I ob erved that my elf. 
_: Thl gentleman was arre led on the 2 lh aod kept ill 

cu todv for a mouth and a half? -A: Yo:. 
Q: He \\'a brought in handcufT:' to Lanore lind taken over to 

variou palce ? 
A: That I 'do not know. The in .. 'tilation went out of 

my hand. I know he wa broughl to Lahore. 
: He \\'as put lip ror trial i-A: Ye. 

:; As a re ull he got acquitted ?-A: Ye. 
0; 'fhi alTair created considerable rr entment in Amrit ar ? 
A: II might have but 1 do not know. Gurudayal ing uid 

th t people laughed t hiro and aid that 5 a reward he got 
arre led . ' 
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Q: General Dyer arrived on the mornjng of t he 11th? 
A: Yes, evening of lith. When he clime the Commissioner 

handed over tbeadmin.istration to him:. 
Q: I want to understand this: "the Commissioner told 

the Officer commanding that he was LO consider himself in charge 
of the Military situation and take whatever steps he tbought 
necessary to establish civil control".-Was this said to the Officer 
Commanding or to General Dyer? 

A: It was said to both, to the Major commanding the troops 
and to General Dyer. 

Q: Al that lime Martial Law bad not been proclaimed? 
A: No, but it exi ted. 
Q: I want to know what he mean by .. being in charge 

of the whole thing." Is it that Military law had been established? 
A: It was an announcement of the fact that the Civil 

administrarion was unequal to the task of pre erving peace. 
<2: For that they need not ha\'e handed over the adminis­

tration to the Military? 
A: The statement is a confession of t he inadequacy on the 

part of the Civil authorities to maintain the King's peace anY' longer 
g: It looks as if the Civil authorities did not exercise an)' 

control but left everything to the Military? 
A: The Mil.itary officers were duected to preserve peace. 

It wa not a case of the Civil authorities laking the help of the 
Military. You cannot for example ask soldier to shoot. You 
conld tell the soldiers that you are unable tl) carryon and they 
should at their di cretion take whatever mea~ures they thought 
nece ary. 

Q: The effect of it was to proclaim martial law on that date ? 
A: It wa 0 pr ctically. It announced the existence of 

Martial L w under the old common law. 
Jallianwala Bag eeting-

Q: The editiou Meetings Act was extended to Amritsar 
01 the J 3th ?-A: Yes, 011 the ILlorning of the 13th. 

_: The proclamation that you referred to was with 
reference tnthi ? 

A: Yes, under the Common Military L,\\. not under the 
Seditious Meetings Act. 

.0: t th was the day of .lbe greatiBaisakhi festival? 
A: Yes. 
g: Many reople from outside come to Amritsar on that day? 
A: Ye. think on that particular day people came not to 

a very lar~e extent becau e ci it picket 'topped villagers and 
ad i ed thetn not to come. In the· ordinary course they come. 

Q: You have een the place where the meeting took place ? 
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A: Yell, it was pointed out to me. 
Q: It is a somewhat low 1 ing place ?-A: Yes. 
Q: It is surrounded by buil:Hngs ?-A: Ye. 
Q: T,lere are four small opeuing to the garden? 
A: There are four sm \I nd ooe fairly I rge. 
g: The actual place where the meetin was held was at the 

outhern extremity? 
A: Ye . I am not ure of it. 

: The pia e \ here the Milit ry came and stood wa 
the 110nh?-A: Ye. 

: n a r ised pot ?-A : e: 
0: That pI e her th milit r t \va a < con iderable 

distallce (rom where the meet;o as held ? 
A : Yes a f ir di t oce. 1 w not t ere at the time bllt it 

was pOinted lit t me. 
: It ha uever been augge ted th t the meeting either 

threalelld the Milit r or did anythi ng of th t sort? 
A : r do not know whether the Militnry will ugge t that 

or no!. 
_: Tn the official p oers, 0 f r ' you h ve been ble to ~ee 

no ug~esl i n have been made? 
A: 1 could not really have seen all th t. 
Q: It ha been ad mitted t h t t he crowd w. not ordered to 

di per e before they were fired on? 
A: Ag in I mUSI lell you I hall have not een II tho e papers. 
_: The la,emem is: "He did not tell the p ople that if 

they did not disper e he would fire: but t once proceeded to dis­
per e the ero\ d by fili ng ?"- A : Ye. 

~: Firing wa done at once, soon a the Military came and 
saw the meetin g. nd according to you r information about 500 
were killed ?-A: Ye, mOl e might have been wounded. 

Q: I under tood you to say that the object f this was to 
strike terror into the heart of the people? 

A : I never aid so. 
Q: You conveyed the idea when you .ay that when this was 

done t he whole rebellioll collap ed. 
A : No I wa speaking of what actually happened. 1 wa 

not allempllng lO read the situation but I lold you as a fact the 
rebellion collap ed. 

g: So lar as you know, it has never been suggested that the 
circunUlanee~ 0 11 the spot were such a to neces.itate 6ri~g?­
Jrre pective of the fact I hat it was a prohibited meeting? 

A: I have 1101 had :my corre.poodeoc:e on the subject. 
Q: 1 pllt it to you again: there wal the idea that Govern­

mel'll was paralysed, that Government would do noth,ing : in order 
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to dispossess the public min~ of this idea you thought it was neces. 
sary to re~ort' to ruthles' tiring: ff what you have said meao lIny. 
th ing it means that? 

A. I do not know. 1 have told yOIl what happened iI a 
maller of historical fact. 

Q. You pUt that as a ju llbcalion for firiug. 
A. It is not my busin~ss to justify. I give yOIl the actual fact. 
_. Was 'it not rt'ally this: th .. t bfcause there was thi , idt'3 

fhat the Government was para!y ed, that the GO\'I' I nlllem C( \lId do 
nothing, therefore you thought il De e~~aly to make ~he pf'(\llle 
realise the truth by killinl:! 500 men a1 I'lle 51 foke ? 

.L\. 1 do not know what wa~ 111 the ",IIId of t he Mi lita ry officer 
who carried out this action. 1 have t;imply tried to give you fact 
as 1 know t bern. 

The Crawling Order- Flogging and Salaming. 
. You have told u dlat clilwling order wa i~sued 

on tbe 20lh ?-A. Ye. 
There aloe hl'u e (1) hoi h bide ?- A. Ye~. g: .-\ large nllmber of I htl11 ?-- /\ . Yes. 

Q. Had 011 3ny informalion as 10 what had happened to 
h se p T!lO I1S who liv t'd in I hese hou<es ? 

A. The were expect eO 10 stay a-t home. 
Q. r th ' Ilad wallt ed to go ut Lhey !tad to conforlll to 'Iris 

<JlUl.'r(- "" Ye~, r think St). 

e:> r~ it 1)01 a fact that cerl~ill per on~ who we.e Illlciel' "rrest 
.md ~ nv were taken t hlC'ugh I hilt ,t I eet had 10 cr<lwl through ? 

.r\ , Y ... I 1 understand that \\'3 what happeoed . I .1" not 
I n()w \ bo t hC'se people are. j wa I ld it wa accidental ano wa 
II t int el tiollal. 

O. Can on tell U~ who th \' wele ? 
A. 1 hOllld think the Military might be able t tell -you. 

They were in Militar, custody. 
g.\ You have told u there was fln gill~ in I he streets? 

Ye, 
I il t rue I hat a egula r fl ogging plattol m was put up in 

the 8rreet?- I suppo e therd was. 
. \ a therd n o reier requilin people 10 alaa", e\'ery 

E uro.peall ? 
A. No, there wa$ an order to , al am the elleral \ hen he 

fin ed but no rder . reI!' Id EUIOflt~an as IIch. 
That i ' not I rue.? 
1 h vt: ne er he I'd of it. Ilhi"k I he eoe ral brought it 

t my n ct iet> and ;) I he be. t of rnv r olleel i n tbe o rder "'3. as 
reg rd: til eneral Eli r in unifQII1l , BUll OJ not qlti,le .ue 
.. bout lh~. 
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Q. 't ere people punished for not Qbeying ? 
A. 1 think s me people were puni bed by the Militt'lry 

uthoril ies wil h confinement 'I or 3 hort period. 
Q. Wei e the Bogged ? 
A . J think w me people vere iven toth days imprisonment 

(nr nOI .alaming. I 3 a military qut" tion. 
_ . You 3y Ih I Oil the IIlIt lid llie] th the mob \Va ill 

ItO 51: iot) of the ci l : h ' dQ au ~OIy that ? 
A. Becau e tbey \ ert:. \ V covered no more of the ilY th. Il 

we could march iot . 
. \Vhen yOIl ~ay lh I pel pie aid tb I I.here \\" Hindu­

, 1ahomedall Raj, id yon he.!r lhal )' ur elf ? 
1 0 , people id to miL t \ a bcin aid in the cilY. 
Certain t ribun I wer 011 thU I d prior to the declilratioll 

of danial law?-t\. Ye. 
j. May I kl ow utlder wh I "uthorit '. 
A. I am afraid Ie nnol tell ou til I. 
-= ' I lIle n the. ammary COllrt ? 
.-\. Ye., r n't tell vou. 
Q. Have vou an}' ' tdlemellt tl'! how how many peo ple were 

<lrre ted-aod IIt:ve brought to Irial ? 
A. They wer.: all blought W Iri I. There WI of cour e one 

clas of peoplt' who were br oughl ill very lar gely-u cia of wander-
10 Sadhus. Their Cd e required to be examined nd wben it 
\Va done, th se ag<riosl whom 1101 hing \V3 f ut)d were let ofT. 

Pundit Jag l Narain then e. amilled witne .-

Q. Was 1I0t recrult illg olle of the predi. po,iog c' u e of lite 
tlouole ? 

A. I cOllsidered recruitillg and I coo idered ag in t it a a 
contributing cau e (Of I he rl:'a~oo I hal I rouble came from people 
who had not been recruited. 1 s' id it came ueither from Ihe people 
, ho had been .ecruiled nor from th disHict where recruitin wa 
vigorou . (QueMiolled further) 1 aid II was a erious cOlltributing 
cause and people who were rec~ uiled ne! her rObe nor complai.ned, 

I Q. Was oot the income lal( rai ed "ery high at thi tillle? 
A. Ye under the ne\v Act there wa a con iderable rt e. 
Q. Am 1 to . ullderstand II,al .Ipa.c fro m Amr,itlar , those 

per ou ho were aff'ef..led by recruiting, drd UOl (orm p::n of the 
mob tbat ~ot out of hano ?-A. Ye. • 

O. BUI that is nu~ applicabl.: 10 any other district? 
A, 1 am not in a P05'liou 10 ay. 
Q. J It not :l fact thaI every crty lIod every di trict had to 

lur III h a CeTI ain quota of mell ? 
.-\. 1 do 1I0l lhink any quola , wa a. ked for fro Arnrit ar. 
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But I think they were aski g for a district quota 
were asked to find those men. 

[LAHOU 

and the p'eople 

Q. 1f there was :my deficiency-If any Lambardar failed 
supply the requisite number? 

A. He was ofcen suspended and a better man appointed. 

Platform Ticket Agitation. 
In reply to further 4uestions witness said that at that time 

people had made a complaint of the fact that no platform tickets 
were issued to Indians whereas Europeans had been allowed to enl er 
the station without any ticket. Witness said this action by the 
railway authorities was on account of limited space. The people 
said that they were I~ot bein~ Creal ed like human beings. 

Q. What is the worst t hat you can ay about t his agitation? 
A. The wots that 1 could ~ay was that it was an agitation 

Dut really I he worst of It \V9 1 hat the agitators were trying to 
show to the people lhat the Government were acting in a manner 
regardle of the interest of the people and without proper 
consideration t wards the people. 

Q. You thought lhat idea was wrong? 
A. Yel, /it was a maller which concerned the railway!.lUthori . 

tie only. . 
Q. You find all over India, wherever there is the ~ystem of 

platform tickets, Indians are compelled to buy I hem and European 
are exempt from it ? 

A. t have very liltle experience of it. 
. Was there anything of the nature of anti-Government or 

anti-European feeling between the 30th. March and 6th. April. 
A. There wa a good deal-I can not .ay anli.European but 

it \Va anti-Government. 

crowc(? 
Am J to undersland that thi \Va the feeling of the 

A. Well, a far as 1 can interpret their feeling! from their 
action. 

(lid ? 
Will yOll kindly say 2 or 3 sentences as 10 what wa 

A. I have not come armed ~ ith extraci . Someb:>dy aid the 
Briti h are like monke . 

.,..' uppo ·o~ ooe di like a cerlain aClion of the Government 
or fCt: 1 tain act p ed by Government and he wants to h ve it 
repealed: he agitate lor it: and if he I ells in hi5 . peech t hi 
action of the Go ernmem i wrong would you call thi agitation 
anti-Briti h Or anti·Goyernment ? 

A. ou will see that from the actual extract . that will be 
placed bef re you. 
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Q. You had seen tho e extracts: sO I want to have it (rom 

you. 
A. You will ee the cartoon : one of which wa a black er-

pent aod it w aid thi wa the relvard which the people ~ot for 
11 their service in the war. 

_ Do you think it w s confined to mrits r alone or that 
feeling wa hared by people all over India? 

A. It \ as cenainly univer al bllt it nowhere took II h (\. 
violent form as at Arnrit ar. 

Q. 0 the 61h nobody w s maItre ted? 
A . No. 

· Then on the 9th. the day of R moab mi. were not the 
proceeding quile orderly in pite of the fac that the Policl! were 
very fe\ in number - .'\. Ye . 

Q. Thi was the occasIon \ hen pe pie hou ed Hiodu·Mu al· 
man ki Jai and there w fraterni ation ?-A. Ye . 

Q. Are . ou or are yOIl not in fav our or Hindu M hornedn/l 
unity ?-A. It depend on wh t subject t hey combine. 

Q. If they give up religious animo ity and fr lerni e ? 
A. I am certainly not againH iI , 

· Will you favour uch II thing ?-A. Yes. 
Q . You will pr:.i e t ho e who are \ olking for it ? 
A. Certainly. 
Q. And therefore when you find that Hindus ilre taking 

water given by Mahomedan aDd each joinmg in the other's fes ­
I ivals. i it not a maller that should give you elltire sati'faction ? 

A. Well, it would give entire atisf(lction, if I did not fear the 
motive underlying- it had a sinister purpo e behind it. 

Q. You did not like their joiot political action? 
A. J have no objection to that. 
Q. You did not like that they should give up their quarrel 

and take up a common attitude with regard to certain politicalt 
matter? 

A. I do not object to It but the fact w • that they convected 
their relillious ceremony iuto a political affair. 

· \VIII not t hat very rrat~flli5ation on religious occasion be 
evidence of the incerity ot the people ?-A. Yes. 

_. You are 110t one o( tho e who believe in the principle of 
divid .. and rule i-A. No. 

\VIttle further id he had noticed that in the Mont gu-
Cbelm ford Report it ood been said that the ODe proof that Indian 
were uofit for complete self-government wall the quarrel of Hindus. 
and Mahomt'dans_ And jf the people tried to erase that blo', that 
was to be encouraged. That would be a ,.olitical movement but 
I hat cou~d not be helped • 

• 
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Why were Drs. Kichlew and Sa.tyapal deported ? 
. He saId that Dr atyapal and Kichlew had not done anything 
111 puhtic to contravellt! the orders served 011 lhem. 

Q. 1 IVallt to know wilat IS the immediate cause of their 
depollalion ? . 

A. , I am not well in a position Lo say that. ~ut there i one 
I hing thai I represented 10 Government: I did DOL make aoy 
recommt:ndation but I said that it howed 1 hat Kichlew. brought 
about the 'hart ai' of bth A pril in hour. time. 

Q. But that IS not a serious thing for which :l mali should be 
deported ? 

A. No, my recommendation was 1I0Lthe cause 0: their 3rr" t . 
a matter of lact, inspite of the fact that they were pre elltcd 

from making public peeches, they were talking in plivate meet in 
aud n1aking people hostile. 

Q. You had no koowl ... dge of it? 
A. KIs;hlew him. elf 101., me his intention was Lo change the 

form of GoVerlllOellL bilL he wished to do it by COil titutiooal 
3Ritalion. Hut I pointed out constitutional a itation very much 

ifTt!r d from what he did. 
Q. I ju l \\lam 10 know whether bet\ een the 19t1f Malch 

and loth April there was anything objectionable to ju tify the order 
ot dep nat iOIl ? 

:\.. Well, he practic 'IIy ordeled the hartal on the 6th. Thi 
W HIe thiog . 

J. .Bill so far a t he orders were, did he do anyt hing to 
' \ 'Il' . avene them? 

A. SO (lir a I know-no. 
_ From the Ih up to the llme they were senl for and 

deponed there \Va 11 I hill~ tangible Irom which you could draw 
the illferen e lhat I he cro\ d would have ri!Cour e to violence? 

A, l did nOt get any such definite information. 
1, it Oat a fact that 011 many occasIon when the common 

p pltl fe(tl a rieved ov.cr ome muni iral a es ment or mupicipal 
order t hey go in a body to the Magist rale to lay I hejr complaint 
before bim ? 

A. 1'e, they could orne in re peclful manner. 
Q. BUI on the 9th ou \ ere n t a\ are of tht:lr dem:::.tllour? 
A. No knowledge 0 the fUlure. 

~ If !l01, why did au conclude that n the :oLh tbe cro\vd 
lila ome 10 U III a violent mood ? 

_-\, 1 W'I IJot ing W lake " eh nce. 
_ C.m OU lell the;: on.lmiltet: of oythin <toile b the ~rowd 

Ir n whi 1 rea 011 bl~ inference could be lira nth t lhe \ aul 
be "iolent 
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A. \ dl l the' kf"ot their hand off \ hen thy 3 1V the P lic~. 
The were ulk '. rom IVh l h< pened elsewher I thaught 
It \ a quite likel that the blldma he of mrit r would attenpt 
10 ° r-a e the aUI horil te -at all r te, the h lice would b 
good eoon!! b ; t he mob i al 3' ..; I tde. 

o uder what i, 'Oil \ ere ' ll~tifiCl I iu declaring the mob 
10 he-an ulIl wful 3 . embly ? 

-\ : ,ectioll J ( r I II r Pr ednre ode (Ioljd l;lu hI r) 
_ ,\ b dy of ~ lIIelt pa . iug the t. i1w • line be omt'. an 

llul.1\\ ful 3-. elllbl\· ? 
~: Ilhiuk I h \'e i,'en . u the wroll , e tioll. 
): 1 11.11 an .. f the II tnbl r 

the - Idi~r who \ ere " 'I" Injured b' tOile n 
the loth? 

A: lfthete wa, n' report i' i io MililM re old~. 0 fal 
a I he Police wa cOllcern .. d, t h Ie wa flO pap r. 

\Vi llle s (urt her aId the number of I he ,owd on I he lir t 0 
jail mus~ h 'e been 2 or 3 I hOll and - It II'll a \ery large rOlVd 
comill' in a ho lilt: IIldlllit:' r, «( the Ii\' III 1\ on.i ling of the 
pIcket one had a re"ol er alld l he 01 II I a Iff! . They fil ed n 
and m'f:n wele kIlled . He admltl d Ih t be/ore 'Ill firing l ok. 
nlace.lhe rowd passed aloll~ the Ndtion. 1 H Ilk nd oth " build­
ing bUI (h~y did not do anr mr chref 

__ S o far a the second fi.ioj;! wa ("(lIIcerned. i It not tru 
that the (WO pleadel \Iho wert: trylll~ 10 ~e( back Ihe mob t Id 
YOll not to fire? 

A : That wa. whell I did nOI gl\ order to op n fire That 
wa . at the lool nf I he bridge and I aid 1 coule! not wait a OJ menl 
longer 

Is it true th t enain ho(~ were fired from th Tel gr ph 
flie;; side, hen I he e pleader were ende,H' tHing 10 persuade til 

mob to reI Ire ? 
A : Ye, 1 did hear orne hot. Very likely the men th re 

were in serious danger. 
: 1 think you will admit thaI up to thi time the crowd 

or th~ majority of tbem had no lathie in t heir hand ? 
. ,: I did not notice aoy lathie!! in their hand. 
_: It wa wh n they had been driven b the fint volley thal 

they divided them elves into three group and oollected bamboos 
od bate"er they could get ? .. 

A ' Ye, tbat was he crowd .vho as y t1 uggest. w,ere peace~ 
ful. They went aod burnt the bank and murdered Mr Thompson. 

_: Do not think that I ir. d.LlY way justify their action. 
What 1 want to know i tbat - or 6 per on ere shot before Mr 
Thornp on was murdered ? 
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A: That is ab. olutely untrue. 
Q: Why do you ay that? You rely on Police reports? 
A: The e facts came out in the trial. I can ooly give you my 

recollection. 
0: From - P. f. on the loth onwards the crowd did 

1101hing ? 
A. There was nothing left for them to do. 
Q. After 5 P.M. on the loth there has not been any attack on 

any person or property. 
A. Some Indian gentlemen will come and tell you that they 

feared that a number of house were in great danger. 
· I am not talking of those ultra.loyalist. Were you in 

pos e'; ion of fact that any person or property was illju red after 
4'30 P.M. on the loth upto the 15th. 

A: I cannot tell you. After t he arrangements we had made 
they could IlUI do it. My impre ion is that after the loth the 
looting of the National Bank was going off and on: it did DOt go 
on one day only. 

Q. Can you give any tangible evidence that property was 
.Iooted ? 

A. t cannot give you any. 
• Therefore whell you made that tatement that there was 

.a crit7cal situation becau e there wa erious danger of Amritsar 
-being looted, wh t are the facta on which you ba ed your opinion? 

A. The people them dve were trying to organi e themselve 
to re i t the inva ion. 

· Is it not because the Police had withdr wu aud they 
vante'd to keep watch and ward? 

A. I do not kilO as a matter of f ct. But I will take it 
from you. (further que tioned) My inform tion wa that tlrere \vas 

pprehension of the lootin by villagers. It wa ba ed on reports­
annot remember if I have got any wrinen report. 

· People ~Iaced befofe you all sorts of he rsay report and 
your opinion i b ed on that? 

A. I think there was more th n hear ay; but very largely 
th t wa the ource of my information at the time. 

: You have poken of excitement during the Municipal 
-elections : Don't ~ou think it ppears everywh re ? 

~ 1 ball thICk it objectionable wherever it occur. 
, : You do not connect them in any pecial manner wIth 

what subaequently h~ppened in Amritsar? . 
A: To certalD e tent, yes. 

You hay no objection to this political activity? 
I have no objectioD to any political activity u ueh. 

n your statement you say: 'We found Hindus attend. 
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og Mahomedan meeting aud ahomedans being given places of 
prominence in Hindu meetin s: the chief link between the two 
-being always lhis Dr. Kichlew I, \Vas it dIsliked by lhe au tho­
(itie ? 

A: 
~ . 
A: 

unu ual. 
0: 

I have no objection to it. I have si mply taled it as a fact. 
Wa it looked upon with disfavour ? 
It was not objecled to iu aoy \¥ y. r nOliced it as being 

A: ot to m knowledge. Cen inl not. 
Q : III para 13 you lIay : 'IThe . ituati 11 h d however begun 

to take a threatening a peel. It w s not that aoy immedi (tte vio­
lence w apprehended. 011 the cont r r , the policy of t he brain 
behind the movement appeared to be di .r cted in the oppo ite 
direction. Their intention was t avoid colli ion with the Poltce"­
Who were the brain ? Kichlew and .At pi? 

A. I did not know then aDd I do not kuow now. 
Q. You did not know then to whom you referred. the brains 

of lhe movement? 
A. At the time when I wrOle thi it seemed to me th t there 

was solbe directing br in behind but I did not know who it was. 
Q. You are still of that opini.on th l their obJect w 5 to 

<lirect the movement in a direclion opposit.e to violence? 
A. Yes. 
.... . What do you mean by threatening a peel? 
A . They form collective pa ive re Istancc which wanted to 

paraly e Government. 
Q. Why was it considered lhreatelliog on th t date l 
A. Because such was the likely re ult that I anticip ted. 
_ . The only thing was that therf\ W a a eneral 'nattal' ...... 

nothing el e? 
A. 1 did not mean a general • hartal.' I meant perai tent 

attempt, to misrepresent Government, wild rumours misrepresen­
ting the actions of Government, the ignorant people were getting 
more and more excited and every po ible feature of the situation 
was such as to cause tbat idea to my mind. 

O. This was going 011 lor the last two months? 
A. It was "getting wor e and worse without any sign of 

:Stopping. 
. Was there during these daya some special measure of 

misrepresentation ? • 
A. There were tbe grossest slande ... s on Government. 
Q. In YOUf opinion all sorts 01 passive resistance were to be 

eprecated ?-A. Yes, any collective thing of the kind. 
O. Up to that time when you wrote thia report, ~ou had no -. 
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evidence before you t Ioat t here were any plan of violelJct: eWr 
conlemplated by t he brains behind t he movement? . . 

A. As a maller of fact the matter was 'sub'iudict:~- l W3l' 

really thinking of tb~ conspiracy calles then going on. 
. . Anyhow at the time you wrute thl report you had II 

po iuve evidence before you that allY violence \ as contemplated? 
A. There is a diffelence between baving nt' evidence belorf' 

me and not coming loa conclusiOIl. I refrainl!d from coming to a 
conclu sion a the lIIa t ter was going 0 11 belore a court. 

You said it was still doublul ? -A. Yes . 
. ~. Therefori' it was doubtful so far as you weI e cOllcern"d ? 
A. It had not beell decided. 

o far as ) ou were cOllcerned. were yOIl doubtful o r not ? 
A. 1 cert aioly had not got ~ 11 t ht: e\ idence by any means and 

t herefore I had not made up my mind. 
Q. You hdU a confelence 011 the e\'ening of the 91h ? 
A. es. 
Q. Were anydla'[lc mea.ute ~lIgges'ed? 
A . No dra tic me~sure. \\Iere !ouJ::Ct:'sted . There wa deep 

indignation but no ided of re\·enge . Frol11 the loth the matter wa. 
in the hands of the Mllilarv 311lhMilles. • 

Oommunict.tion with the Punja.b Government. 
\ /Vas the order of de~jortation received by po [ ? 

A . It was lec~ ived through a Police officer. 
Q. During I he_e days bet ween I he bt hand 10lh wa any 

communication received from Lahore b' "ou or anybody t o your 
knowledge? 

A. I do nOl remember to have received an\, written order, 
The Commi~l>ioner \Va down I here gl\'ing me adVIce. 

Punfb? 
ou reee! ed no ill tructlOlls from the Gavel nment of 

A. To the be t of my recolll'ctioll, no. 
id you consult Government official betll'eell these da ? 

A: I cOllsulted the Commi ioner, nobody el e. 
Did you do it by leHer or \ hen he Came down there? 

A: When he came down there. 
Q : pto the morning of loth there h~d been no ign of 

enmilY lO\l\rd European a uch ? • 
A: I had 1I0t oen it 3S uch. 

I Promulg,ation of order.s. 
Q: YOli i ued certain order? 
A: Yes. 

't'h Older ~ ere en the morning of the loth to the 
3 M ,t i trates ? 

r t ga\l~ \h.W\ otWnlu\ ' • 
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Q: Was this promul ated olmong t the people? 
A : There wa no time. 
Q: They were not promulgated amoogu Lhe people? 
A: Tiley were promulg ted by the M",istratel who met the 

cro\ 0, aa tar" he could. He could not hlln elf bear the crQwd 
would Dot hs ell LO them. 

Q: Y \}\1 thou hE th I ne hour before vou de lared the ~ 
embly unlaw ful, It w.)uIlJ Iry lO cr tbe line? 

A: fhat i. It rdly tbe Ie .. I \Vol IIC PUIIIO it. I i ued the 
order uuder cetion '44, t h t any fOlsOU wn i bey d oyorder 
bec me an uula lui II emoly. h d 0 time to look at the rul­
Hlgs. 

Q: You think th t ocli 0 144 pplies LO the a ? 
A. I have not au e ted it did. I hllve not h d it argued 

before me. 
Paodlt J g to lian theo read out portion of lhe ection. 
Q: A c rdin 10 you there VI SOOt uffi ient lime to promul. 

gate lbl order bdorenand lid if lhe crowd wou ld h ve h t oed 
to theMd~i lr Ie tbco lhl order w uld h vo b en promulgated? 

A. Ye. 
l'iriD, at the Brid,e. 

Q, Now COOlin to the 6, lug at lhc orid w ell you rrived 
here was piCket toned in your pI e ence? 

A. Yes. I al 0 wa stoned. 
O. You wl:lll up to the crowd. 

1 tried 10 do it but wy hor e would n t r ce t he crowd. 1 
<lid OOL 0 in ide the rank of lhe crow -they were rOlln me 00 

my right h rd, 011 my J,:ft hand aud rather behind me. 1 wa 
parti Uy urro undcd by the rowd. 

In uswc:r l fUllher que lion wltne aid at l he lime when 
rin wa opened, lhe: pickel W tone . There c: nd and 

even a t hird 10lle lhrowlng Ithougb he mentioned ouly one in 
hi 5talement. He lIlV a m 11 beillg wuu nd d III hi pre e e at 
lhe brid . Tbe rea n r'/f n t melili 1l101t the lhi;jf Wo was 
l hat he ~ .IS rklll .. t real p e ure alld had co put I)W: f<let 
Ii ClInCI dy he coul". fie OU hl I have ellli ed I.h e tWO 

howlII the re v ll [01 6,lOg but he w ~ wo, kill' at reat 
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have served you right, YOIl de erve il." II Wi! a cowardly alld 
calumniou statement. He thought that the estimate of 20 to 30 
killed and wounded wa fairly correct. The proce i·\O whicn 
carried he dead bodie as a very big one anrl orderly one. The 
Police commenced inve ri~ations on 1 he t Jth :tnd he himself went 
as far as the Kotwali . On the nth the leaders of the riot were 
arrested . There was no dist urballce on the 12th. The people 
obeyed his orders bout burying the dead but with reluctance. 00 
the IJlh. he went in ide the city and arrested the leader. but there 
was no demon tration. no trouble. 

Afraid of being Murdered. 
· What are your rea ons for saying that the civil aUI horitie 

had ;0 control over the city? 
A. Becau e our control extended pract ically as far as the 

ri could go, as far as the trooo could see. People were collected 
and no Magistrate, no official could go inlo tbe cily without a· lrong 
escort. 

· What wa there to prevent ou to go inside the city 00 

the I nh . nd ulh, to 0 in ide the city and 10 your ordinary 
dutie ? • 

A. WeH, because I would be murdered Ilke Bank Manager . 
· And being afraid of being mu rdered you and other per on 

in aut honly did not venture in ide 1 he city? 
A. You may put it like that if you Iike.-The Military 

uthor/tie would not allow an one inside the cit y. 
· What wa there to pre ent you to R" in side the city wit h 

troop ? 
· ~ did go bu ~ e could not Iwa s go with the aid 

of troo 
· Y u cannot 2' if vou had gone ith treo l our uthofit 

would h ve b en oopa ed ? 
A. 1 cannot ay. 

· Wha do ou me II b a inll that you had to obey the 
mit ry Illhontie ? I it not fact til t every authority that 
ou h d w . derived Or confened on you by pme act of tbe 

gi atur ? 
I take it from you.-Ye '. 

Let.V& Aside tb Oommon La of England. 
( . Where j Lhe 3u,h ri,y under which you CAD U ~nd 

y ur power and hand over them to tbe ~ilil..a" authorities? 
A. There j the common Law of England. 

. Leave !>ide he Common La of England. \Vbere is the 
pro i ion i 1 lhe Criminal Procedure Code bicb authori ed you or 
the Comm; ioner to hand over the adminisrration of any city to 
the Military autboritie ( 
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A. I do Qot think Utere·is. 
Q. You referred to section 130 and 131. Wben YOu., asked 

the aid of the Military you had no bus.neu to suggest th.t the 
whole matter should be entirely in tbeir hands? 

A. No. but 1 don't like to quote the section. 
Q. You canOOl suggest oy &ection und~r wbich yOll or Lhe 

Commi sioner were authorised to hand over the dmini tration ? 
A. It is rather difficult to point out leg I uthority bu~ where 

tbe C'vil authorities are unable to control the ituation and 
guarantee peace and order, it i tbeir duty to sk the Military 
authorities to take steps if 'considered nece safY to preserve order. 

Q. 1 quite agree ith you but that is 1I0t the mt ning of sec, 
129 and 131. It does not say th t you hould hand over the 
admlnistratioll to the Millt ry aUlhcrities ? 

A. There was no civil ildmlllistralioo at th t time e~cept wh t 
was directed to the maintenance of peace and order. W did nOt 
band over any civil admini nation pracLically so c lied. 

Q. You could invoke the aid of the Mililary and !Jothing 
more. As a District Magistrate of 20 year experience, unde.r what 
authority you allowed the MililalY 10 do II tho e thing ? 

A. What things, other than maimenan e of order nd peace? 
Q. Many thiogs, issuing of proclamation, doin hundreds of 

other tbing ? 
A. I am not al guing a case but my opinion is that the Military 

commander was justified 10 laking all measures Dece ary to 
maintain public peace and order sucb a arresting people and 
dispersing crowd. If be is ued any order lor what he considered 
the pre c:rvation of order that was not an extraordinary exercise of 
authority but rat.her making it sure that his exerci e of alubority 
would not be sudden and oppre ive. 

g. But tbe:re mu t be orne authority from either the Govern 
mellt or the Leg! latun! ? 

A. I am not acquainted with it. 
Mr. Miles Irving aid that 102 pellOll were tritld for an 

attempted Dacoity at the Tarmarn Tabhll. Tbe e men were me­
by one Impector a!ld halt a d zen constables nd they all ran. away 

g. It was nOl a very dangerou crowd; 
_. Ye, if tl\ey had not run away tbey would have looted. 
Q. May I know jf they weTe convIcted for an attempt at 

lootiug or (or waging war agamse the King-Emperor? I 

A. 1 believe it was waging war. 1 could remember. . 
Q. I it not a fact that if you had tried them for dacoity, 

hey could not have been tried by court martial courts 7 
A. I do dot think 59. 
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Q. Unless their attempted dacoity had been cbanged to wag· 
ing war against the King, tbe Martial Court would have no author. 
ity to try them? 

A. I donot think so. 
Q: Electric light and water supply was cut otT from the 

loth? 
A: Yes. in the city. 
Q: What was the justification? A spirit of revenge? 

. A: As ftgards water supply, there wa rumour that tbe 
water had been poisoned. Weal 0 did not use the ater for we 
thou~ht I hert= might be some ba is in it. 

g: Was it cuI off fr('ltn the Civil Lines at any time? 
A; It was not cut off but for a short time it was not used. 
g: I suppose you were not consulted about this order? 

: I 85 consulted from time to time but in regard to thi 
matter 1 was not consulred-so far 3S I remember. 

In reply to further questions witness aid the electric suppl l 
w.as cut off to prevent reople from parading about and also ther 
did not know what they were going to do with tbe electric machi· 
nery. • 

Q: How could the cutting of electric current prevent people 
from damaging the elect ric plant or electric appliance ? 

A: I do nol pre the particular motive. J say I cannot 
rememher it. I know it wa thought a good thing that the electric 
light should be cut off . 

Q: Wa not that order ba ed Oll II spirit of revenge? 
A : Revengei hardly the ~ ord. It was a ort of puoi h­

ment. 
Q: Don't you think it \ a Ilk the puoi bmeot of the old old 

,babi days? Becau e 2000 per ons committed an offence, un­
doubtedly very d stardly offence, therefore ou thought thdt the 
whole ity h ould be pU111 shed for that? 

Q: At that til1'\e the curfew ordt'r , as in (orce: peop'le coul'd 
no come out after . P. M. ther fore clectri tight would be all the 
men ne e ar t nnd out, hether they were obeying those orders 
01' flO ' ? 

A: There were picket . • 
: I aot to know how the utting ofT of the water supp1r 

or ctric light ould help ill the lea t in maiof3ioing peace an 
order ? 

A : I cannot remember the ex ct moti\re hieb influenced 
tbe Milit r Authoritie in their deci i n. 1 think partly there wa 
the En~ineering rea n-hydr n had been rna bed, water was 
pouring ou ; tlDd the other rea on wa the rumour that the ater 

a poisoned. A regard electric light, tbe city a judicially 
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found to be in a state of watfare-and If the Military Authorities 
re ned to this to bring the people to a more saner frame of mind; 
t hey did nOI hing wrong. 

Q: Is there any record to show how many hydranh had been 
smashed ? 

A: I do not know. The Municipal peopl have it. 
Q: Had 'this allegat ion about st reet hydrants being ma hed 

been ever put forward ? 
A: I think the Municipal Engineer told me lha the hydrantS 

were mashed. (Fun ber que tioned) r do n I remember if tbe 
Engineer told me that t he hydrants were sID bed on ccount of the 
mmour that waler had been poisoned. 

Q: Now, was any agreement taken from me oeople a 
Tarn Tarn that the would Dot fn e part in any political activit' 
for I he next t hree years and hat if the ' did t hey would pay n 
fine of Rs ·,000 each ? 

A: People there did make ome kind of (lgreement. It was 
nOI done under my orders. 

Q : Could that agreemenl be pr uced? 
A: 1 think it can. 
g': So far as your experience of 20 vear a Magistr te 

do ·ou know that excep in cases of I hefr, unnatural offences 
ome ca es of rape, no convicted per on is flog{!ed under the Indian 

Penal Code? 
A: [do not remember. 1 never us d the cod the 
Q: Were you never informed that a meeting a held on 

the 12th and at that meeting it wa anll unced by Haosraj I hal 
a econd meeting would be held next day at 4 P.M.? 

A. I did not know in what exact fOI 01, but I heard lhat a 
a meeting would be held the next lIay. I did not hear Han raj'. 
name 

Q: He wa the man who ub equently turned apr' ver? 
A; Ye. 
Q: He was that very man wh" wa addressing I he crowd In 

the Ja\lianwal\a Bagh ? 
A: You put his name in my mouth ye terday but I believ 

he ~ a DOt. I believe another man \V 5 addrc: IlI1g. 
: ComiD~ to the incident of the Jalhanw la Bagh , did any 

person of authority vi it JaJliawala Bagh that day? 
A: Not that 1 know of. • 
g: To the be!' of your knowledge and belief nobody did ? 

A : I do Dot kno . I did not. 

• 

W s any ambulance provided for the 13th? 
I beli<!ve no . 
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Q: Was any help given by the authorities to remuve the 
dead and the dying to hospital. 

A: I believe they were left to their friends. 
Q: Was any help given to t he wounded after the firing of 

the loth at 2 P.M. 
A. Yes, some people were taken away~ The ho pll al wa 

close by and the Civil Surgeon was sent for from the hospital. 
Q: Afler this firing did you consider it reasonable 10 modify 

your curfew order which was pas ed at 12 o'clock that da jll uIIler 
that the dead and the dying might be removed? 

A. I thought people would take away but they did II t. 
They wer in a state of excitement. 

Q. You are not aware that any person di obeyed the cu rfe\ 
that night ? 

A. There was nobody in the ci ly to ay. 
O. There i no repol t of disobeying the curfew on the, 3th. 

. The t rool went I ight back and left the city to it elf. 
Q. Did it I I ike any per on in authority or to you I hal it 

was ab olut Iy necessal y that some first aid wa necessary, In vi w 
of the fact Ihal ~ome 4 ur - hundr~d lYere killed and a very lalge 
number wounded. 

A. I do not know whether the General in authoril ~nt lIut 
a party or not. Per hars il was considered unsafe. 

Q. Rea onably, il would have been unsafe for a p rt y 
of soldiers? 

A. I do not know but T found the . Military Authorille 
making various arrangements for Ihe safety of the Civil Stalion in 
case of further ttack. In facl, it was a late of warfare, we: \ ere 
face to face \ ith the enemy and it \ a 1I0t proposed to end OUI 

. u h partie. I think it would be: a good thing to do if the il u -
tion ermitt d it. 

. From .30 tv 7.30 110 help \ a rendered? 
A. You hould really a k the ffiCd ho brought the If p 

to the cilY. I do not like to J1licipate his reading of the itu.llioD. 
_ . You never Illquirt' d whether any of tbe per on belonged 

to the re p ctable cia ? 
•. \ ell I did. 
Q. an you give the n me of the per ons? • 

1 cannot . I inquired \ hether there wa any re ptctable 
peopl or not and I \ a lold there \ ere not. 

. That information I ba ed 00 heatsay and you bad not 
ioquired iOlo the mutter at 11. 

10 t of m an \ er re ba ed on hearsay knowledge. 
. 1 think it , ould be very e to get the Dllmes or the 

per all fr mali e records . 
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A. The Police kept a note of the Military punishments. 1 
have got my figure from them. But 1 do not kDOW whether they 
have destroyed tho e papers or not. 

_. Can you tell u whether it wa a return or a w'rillen report. 
A. I am Dot ure. 
Q. You are very gue to whether there was any respecta-

ble person or not. 
A. I a ked the Poli e nd they jd o. I did ool go into the 

matter m self. 
Q. There were about 100 peci I on t ble ? They wete II 

pleader ? 
A. Yeo 

Practically the whole lot 0 the pleader. 
A. Yeo 
Q. If Lhe Di triet authoritie be 110 ed to CIt rid of legal 

practitioners from their dl trict ,poliu I a Ita lion would ce e t 
once or lo a very) rge extent ? 

A. I am not sure. I am not prepared to y O. 1 think it 
might increase. 

Q. Are the leg I practitionerI' like by th authOrllles? 
A .• Ye they are 011 very go d term with the I a1 

Governmelll. 
Q. I take It tht'y wele ap inled bpe<:i I con table und r lhe 

Police Act. 
A. They were appointed by th· Military Authontie ud 1 

do not think they knew very much 01 the Police cl. I do 1I0l 
think the Police Act would be apphc bl . 

_. The Military appointed them? 
A. Ye o 
Q. Except the Police Act I there"l1 uthorit} under which 

nyone could be appointed Spe lal Con tables ? 
A . There is a general common la in Engl nd under whj h 

ny per 011 could be appointed peci.!1 con t ble. It Wd d ne 
fter the pr mulgation o( M mal law-I think it w done (ter 

tbe J51h. 
Q: \Vh t were \ eir dutie , 
A. They were upp ed to k ep .. general eye n what w 

oiog on in the city and report to the Marual Law authoritie . 
Q: How many mile had they to travel every d V ? 
A. The city i only h II mile from the eneral Head 

Qu rler . • 
Q. Wa Ihere any'written in tructl n about their dutie ? 
A. The Manial Law Authontie might have them. I have 

o t get lhem. 
Q. You kno It is a thing reatly di liked by every.Indian? 

• 
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A. I do not know why they sl}ouJd. 
Q. Please answer my question. As a matter of factI the~' 

disliked thi ? 
A. They disliked at first. Towards the end they rather 

liked it. 
Q. Thes~ pleaders liked it ? 
A. Yes, they were 'fint caller! Special Corstables and afterward 

the name was cbanged to Ward Officers. 
Q. Therefore t hey would not be subject to any rule and 

regulations under the Police Act ?-A. 1 should think not. 
Q. In your opinion there is no difierence between pedal 

Constables under the Police Act and Ward Officers un t'l the 
Martial Law? 

A. There is no difference in t he function ' they were 
performiAI'(. 

Q. Nor any difference in punishment to which they vl're 
liable ?-A. I do not know. 

, 1 no a pecil\1 Con table punishable for the am ofTen c­
for whi h an ordinary onstable i Ilunishable ?-A. Ye. 

Q. Soecial Constables appointed under the Police Act would 
be subordinate to Head Con. table and to the In pector ? .' 

A. They were con tituted under the Military Authorities. 
There was no question of their being PUI under the Police. 

O. What a~ their ward dutie ? 
A. To patrol their respective divi ions from lime to time and 

report to tb officer about what happened . 
Q. The were ordered to report themselves three times a 

day?-A. Yes. 
Q. YOII coosid r Ihi \Va liked by the pleaders ? 
A. 1 do not ay they liked it but they were:1 great deal 

reconciled to the e, after relaxation. 
. Can ou give us their name ? 

A. I ca.nnot, but ' u will get a list. 
In reply to further questions witne said that at that lime 

the number of con table \ a 200 or 300 and the stren th of the 
Mili ary at no time \Va Ie than 500. And of cour _e there wa 
I,SOG camp followers, but th.; were not availahle fat military duty. 
. ...,' Then ~ here w the need of appointihg the e pleader as 

peei I con labl ? 
A. ou had better a k the Military aUlhoritie. They ga\' 

\'er valuable information. They could iufluence the people they 
could get the be t inform li n. As matter of fact, they did on 

ver 1 occasion ver good ervice. They were a very useful bodr. 
U then dmitthat ther could influence the public? 

e . 
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Q. I put it to you these pleader were appointed Special ' 

Con table because the authoritie wanted to punish these local 
agitator ? 

A. Well, the idea did not originate with me. I cannot .peak 
of the motive of the Military officers. 

Q. A large. number of C. I. D. men wer imported into the 
city of Amritsar? 

A. I do not ay a large number. The inve5tig tlool were 
carried on by the C. I. D. But their trenllth I do n t know. 

Q. It was the C. I. D. \ ho decided which ca e wa to go to 
the Civil Court, which to the Sp ci.l Trib a I, ad they u ed to 
send ca e to the Legal Remembrancer 0 r y ur h d? 

A. Ye they ent ca. es direct to the Remembrancer and 
to us. 

Q. They were seD ding out c e to different courts for 
disp al ?-A. Ye. 

Wilne s further aid tbat the Mohurum w n t a (uner I 
pr ce ion in his definition. At the time of Indian (uner I proce ion 
people did make noi.e. 

0 . • You aid Kichlew said, "we will u e ur haods"-m3 
I know what i the ource of your inform Iioo? 

A. Report of the pedal reporter of t he Government. 
• Can that be made avail able to us ?-A. Ye. 

Q. What wa the occasion and in wh t conn ction did he 
ay that? 

A According to my information it w me tin 00 
March I t in connection with the Ro\ latt Bill . 

Q. Are you alVare of the fact that re pect,bl people who 
ere rrested were handcuffed in couple and \ ore m rched to 

t he city and for hour they were made to it in the lun ? 
A. I cannot . ay how t r they were. I a no pr III at 

aoy uch occa ion you mention. I saw people w re handcuffed 
in the ordinary way and t ken over to he Civil Jailor to the 
Crimio I Court . 

O. Up to thi time you are not a are that they were kept 
handcuffed for day and days both in j il anti in fort? 

A. They er; n kept handcuffed unle they ere kept in 
tent . tn the fon tempor ry pI ce w re made and I do not 
know helher they were kept handcuffed or not. 

. For several day no arrangement 35 made for ti\'ese 
f peetable people? • 

A. 1 cannot ay. Everyone wa offering from wan of 
c . din.ry cc.mfort. I know European women and children were 
'uffering from inconvenience in the Fort. But they wer not 
kept in,condemned cells. 
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.\ Q. Either in ·the Fort or in jail they were not kept -in 
'cells ?-A. Ordinary ward cells, I am not quite sure. 

JBALIANWALA BAG· 
Q. The estimate was there were about 25 to 30 thousand 

people present there? 
A. 1 did not see. I have heard about that number wa 

present but I do not tr:ust estimates. 
Q. Why were not steps taken to warD off those people who 

had commenced to assemble that the meeting had been proclairn­
'ed as illegal ? 

A. The authorities were warning them along the street and 
it was, as I understand, at 4 P .M. that the news of the aCI ual 
collecting of the crowd came to General Dyer upon which he 
made arrangements. 

• You knew of tbe f<lct that the meeting was going to be 
held . Where was the difficulty of posting two or three soldiers 
.and caring away the people ? 

A. 1 00 not I billk it would he at all aCe to send 3 or 4 
old iers.-Q. Half a dozen soldiers ? 

A : 1 think they would not be able to do so. .. 
Q. It w~ 1101 done becau!>e it would not be safe to send half 

a dozell :; Idlers ?-A. I cannot say,. 
Q. Why- were DOt the Police ordered to go and prevent 

people from enterillg the garden? 
A, It wa \lot safe for a pany of Policemen to go il1lo the 

city In Lho e days. 
Q. "fhey were at the KOlwali ? 

• Ye I behind wall ' with military pickets. We could not 
send Ollt tbat part to the City. 'Vhen the General w DC he took 
the whole force ith l:um. 

1650 Rounds of Ammunition Fired on a Dense Crow-d. 
Q. How many sho! were fired ?-A. :650, 
Q. sit trlle haL firing continued for J 5 minute ? 

· General yer ~ ill be able to tell you that. (Further 
u tloned) I think it continued for 10 minut . 

" 'IN eru ou in/ormed that the majority of the dead bodies 
'Ivere t. the entrance ?-A. ihey were t the back. 

. Wa IIOt the chief exit occupied by the ~1iIit ry '1 
A. No. . 

, Q. Is il 10 ur kno~ ledge that a boy of 7 months wa shot? 
A. Not 10 my knowlege. It was not Oil our Ii t. 
_' 0 long a you ere t Amritsar you ne r took tbe 

trouble of ertaining 3 to h many peopl were klUed and 
ounded ?, 
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A. Y c:s, we tried. I got a return from t he health officer. 
Q. You never ordered an enquir ? 
A. 1 did not order any lpecial enquiry. 
Q. Between the 11th nd 12th did ou suglle t .an' meeting. 

to be held to terminate the hartal ?-A. No. . 
Q. All t he hop were opened on the morning of I he J 3th? 
A. All the shops were opened. 
Q. There wa no hartal on t be morning of I he I t h. 
A. 1 do not know. A gre t numb .. r of hop. were still closed. 
Q. Am I to understand that 7- per cent f the $h p were 

opened and:: per ceDt clo ed ? 
A. I can't tell you the percent e. ome hop were opened' 

and ome clo ed. 
The wilne w then ex mined with r ferenc t the me tiog 

called by the authoritie . The spt'ech whicR the witll made 
wa not a threatening peech. He sooke to the per on pre ent 
in I erm of ve,y bitter remor e. 

_. Will you kindly give to I he committee II the facta up , 
which you are prepared to make the tatement that I he; wa 
a slate (open rebellion? 

A. From the general st Ie of the di rict of Amriu r. 
. Can you place all the facts upon whi h nu came I the 

cODclusion that hetween the loth and 151h of April, th re was 
a I al e of ollen rebellion in A roril sar. YOII h ve.t ted one fact, 
viz. the general state of the province. It i very difficult (or me 
to understand. But apart from tbat c n you give any pecific 
facts "pon which you ba ed t hat opinion of yours? 

A. (I) Tbe temper of I he people was ab olutely defi nt. 
(2 1 They were organi ing them elves in a host ile m nner. 
(3) They were openly making it known that they h d control 

of I he city and that they ere independent of the Government. 
(4) They al 0 believed that the Ie der de ired to Ii ht it 

out and ee who was the rna ter. 
All the e news came to u notably throu h hear ay. The 

opinion w arrived at from the geoer I pect of air ir a reported 
to u_. That i all.that I can tbink of at the mOment. 

Q. What do 'ou mean by 5ayin~ thaI bet een the loth and 
J "th they were organi iog tbem elve? Were they ettin" up 
a rival org oiution p( their own, orgaDisinl'( Police and Military 
and law courtl> or what? A. That i not what I mean. 

. What do you mean by defiant attitude? 
A. It was on tbeir look. We learnt also (rom reports. 
Q. You said tbey had cootrol of the city but )lou yourself 

dmittei tbat nooe of the authorities cared to go inside the city. 
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A. Yes, without an e cort. Nor would they be allowed to 
·do 0 We could not put out our head into the hornet'" oe t. 

Q, Will you kindly give me I he source of your information: 
allY report about ome body a ,iog 'we will 6 ht it out?' 

A. You will find it in I he: record of one of the I rials. 
Q. You beiog a magistrale of experience are you prepared 

to take Ollt a IIIgle exptl" ion from a speech and "y that amounts 
10 open rebellion? 

A. L did 1I0t come to I hat opinion on only olle of I h e 
t;lrCumstance. I came to tlle cunclu iOIl upon a number of circum. 
Lances appeari ng bdore me during the day. At the time I wa 

,not writing out a rea Oiled judgment. 
, The Ora"liDr Order. 

Q. Are you prepared to wear that the allegation that the 
real order was that people mu t crawl on their belly and if allY 
one rl'f d to d it he woul be bUlted by rifle is fal e? 

A. It never came 10 my acknowled e in thaI lorm. I did lIot 
" ee it my elf. It was IIOt the order that the General told me that 
,he had pa ed. 

· It would not h"ve cau ed any hard hip to the people in 
the hou e on lhat Slreel ? l 

A. I do not think they had much inconvenience. People 
.told me Lhey ot ov r the roof and down behind. 

And you think people were vcr happy to do SCI? 

· I do not ay 110. 
F urther que tiuned wi l lie id there wa no ci ·il uthority 

r sent at tbe lalliallw I ba b-l1o Magi trate but only twO 
olice officers. He w not ver r. If he had bem eot tor he 

w uld h v been availa Ie 
• Amrit ar bein in a late of open \ ,ufare with the autho. 

11tie how 100 in your "iew wa this IV rfare continued? 
(I. I hould ay the control of the city as re umed 

liter I he 1 lh . 
Q. Tllell thi IY reare continued from loth to the 13th ? 

Yes. 
nd 1 take it I h t the me li re liken durin the period 

~' er Il the roollog thal Amri l r lYol in 3 tate of \ art rt: a .11 t 
l he CnH It ? 

Ilhlllk lbit " lh~ Ie. 
I\'U 10 nOlher I ~7 . 

uu r JfU d the whole 
101: "Ilh th 0' II? :\. It:c ~r 

Lor Hum I : 1h 'tile' 
Ie fIb \I ' n:l' i l he.l. h 
1r. In, 1 • I It l't d 3 

ne r we 



Extracts from Evidence of Oeneral Dyer. 
The Hero of Jhal1anwaJa Ba . 

· In the mornin of the f3th, did Y u proc ed through the 
city with a column of avail ble troop_ ? 

A. We went half r und th citv towar the En ....•. Gate, 
nd then I proceeded thrOll h til cily. 

· What troop had oU ~ f 2::) Urili!!h Troop , 200 Indian 
soldier and:! armoured car p A. Yell. 

Did ou proceed through the cit to th pi ce where you 
got report a to m b collect in . 

A . There wa mob at til' outhern g teo We h d a little 
difficulty in dispersing them. They would n t '0 away immedi­
ately. 1 con 'idered the ,dvi ability of 'pening fir n tbem. 
1 thought it would not be quite right perhnp and Ih t 1 had 
better I ue a proclamation per ()Dally hefore I 10 k suoh a dra 
tic me ure. 

(. Were you making any u.e ot a!)}, eroplane t that lime? 
· 1 do not think thert~ IV n aer plane. It wa not 

actually under Illy command. lL u 'ualJy me from L hor . 
Q. That gave you report ohhe illlat i,)Ils in the city? 
A. \' es, it 'ave important inr rrnati n about what IV going on. 
Q. n the cca ion of thi march through th city, In what 

condition ~hd you find tbe crowd P . 
A. I think they were very insolent. 

. Huw did tbev hOI their insolen e ? 
A. They I'erc' houting Hindu-. Iu S1 Itn ok! j i. Then I 

ordered them to 0 all', y out they would n l move b ck. eett in 
member of the crowd pat 011 the ground as we pa ed ,Ions. 

Q. Did you ee any act of violence committed on that occa-
ion? A. No. 

Duno that day, certain arre l were made by the p lice? 
Ye. 
Were th~' made under military protecti n ? A. Ye • 

Q. I think ) ou II d a proclamation prep red which appear 
in the ppendix of th rep rI which you ent lO the en ral 

tafton the 6th Au U,L? A. Ye. 

Q. Thal proclamation I ee is in fdllo ving term : "The in­
habit.an of Amrit ar are hereby inform d if they will cau e 
dvn ge to any property or commit any act of violence in A mril ar 
or it environ il \ i,l be taken fbr granted ~at suCh act are 

6 
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due to incitement and offenders would be punished accordIng 
to Military La\\'. All meeting and gatherings are hereby prohibited 
and will be di persed at once under liIitary Law." - \\'ho pre. 
pared that proclamation? 

A. 1 think it was done by me or tbe Brigac\e·l\[ jor, or I may 
have dictated it to him aud he wrote1t. 

Q. That was prepared on the evening of the Iz~h? A. Yes. 
Q. How was it i:.sued ? A. Through the Police, I beli ve. 

· Do you know wuether any measure wa taken to ensure 
its publication to th e citizens? 

A. No. I cannot. I wa rno t likely informed that it had 
been proclaimed-l am not certain. 

· Would you kindly explain what wa meant by d i persing 
the crowd under Military Law? 

A. 1 would have to eod them away--clear them out. 
· AccorC\illg to 1\1 lli t r law if you requi red to cti per e the 

crowd mu t you or mu t YOII not give them intimation that they ' 
are required to di per e before you re orted to the mea ure of 
fIring p 

A. \ e hal' to warn them and after tbat if they do collect, 
they will be fired on. 4 

(. According to military law, will it r will it nc t be ri ht 
to fire upon 11 crowd to di s ~er e them with ut giving pr per inti. 
mation p 

A. They h d already had order. If they would collect. it 
would be right. 

Q. n the morning of the 13th did you form any re olution 
II to ur"elf m king a declaration in the cIty ? 

A. 1 went ther perlton \I '. 
· What time did you tart to make the proclam tion ? 

A. 1 d not e ctl)' remember the time. It might have been 
i)-3u per hap.. It mi hI h \'e b en Iter. 

HOI long did r u occupy in m king the procl, m lion? 
A. Lon time. 1 mlly ha\'e been there zor 3 hour. 

The proclamation. 
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gatherin of 4 men will be looked upon and treated a nn unl I\'ful 
assembly and dj per ed by force of arms if n ce sary.'·-Wh t i 
the significance of tbe qualificatiorr: .• if nece ary". 

A. Well, if I thougbt it nece ry. It might not allVay be 
nece ary. 

Q. At the time the proe! m tion \ i' u d, ,a there any 
ejacul tion b)' the crowd with reference t th protlam tioll ? 

A. I heard a go d deal of noi e. lwa a Iitl!e behind perhaps, 
I did not alwars hear \Vb t tbey id. 

Q. Can you per onally 1 tif to any di tinct referen e made 
by the crowd during the period u ~ ere i uing the proci. m Ii 1'1? 

A. 1 could nQt ay. They WeT I u hing. The)' were nOt 
behaving very well evidentl . I w told th t th Wer • a iog 
that it wa bluff :" They \ ont fire '. and v rd that effect. 
They were not to be afraid. 

. Wben di you gel information th t • meellllg w uld 
assemble at Jallianwal Bagh? 

A. I, as in the city t the time. I cannot quit say \Vh t time 
it wa. It may have been from J -30 to :I p m. 

Q. I see in this report to the 'C1)eral I II you I I : It IVn 
at 12.-15 on my way to the Rambagh I \VtiS informed til t in pite 
of my tern proclamation a big meeting would be held t J IIi n· 
\Vala Bagb at 4-30 that afternoon? A. Thal'a orrecl. 

Q. On the a sumption that it i correct, I w nl YOll I explain 
why you did not take me ure to preveot the rowd fr m • ~ em­
blinlt at all at the Jallianwala B h ? 

A. 1 went lhere a oon 1 c uld. I h d to organise m forc~s 
to think the matter Ollt. 1 h d to or aol e my for e , l h d to 
make up my mind \ bat forces I w going to leave b hind ntl 
wb re to po t pickets. I thought I had don DOli b in w rning 
them 1'101 to meet, If tbey were going to meet, I w King 
fa t, I could. I had to con Ider the milit ry situation and m ke 
up my mind and it took a cert il'l amount of time. 

Q. Did the making of dispo ilions ntee itate the (letup lion 
of the lime between U'40 to 4 pm. ? 

A. I did not believe Ih t they would rea II,. meet after all that 
I h d done in the morning. 1 did not think of ending ofT another 
force and warn them not to go. 1 had IV toed them 12 d IS up 10 

thl.' time I got back to Ra.mb"gh. 
Q. When did you getfinjte information that in fact Ihe 

meeting wa being held, . At about 4 o'clock. 
Q. From whom ,? A. It a from ;tr. Rehill a far a r 

remember. 
Q. When you received that information wbat action diLl yon 

take? A. fy plan were complete then, and I marched ott 
to r~s the city soon after. 
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Q. Had you with you p.icke tting parties 1 
A. I had picketting parties and we all marched off together. 
Q. Y ou had a special party of 2; r ifles of Gurkhas and 25 

Sikhs? 
A. Ves, the re were 40 other Gurkhas armed with K urk is. 

• Vou also had two armour'ed car ? A. Ves. 
Q. Were t\lose all the Iroops a vailable after keeping pickets 

re erved, A. Every man availab le after provid ing for other things. 
Q. You proceeded towards the Jalllanwala Bagh at an usual 

pace. 7 A. rdi nary walking pace. 
Q Vou d id not consider there was any necessity for proceed­

ing with any extra exped ition ? 
No si r It was very hoI. We went at u ual pace of march­

ing . 
· As you marched you d ropped out the picket partie ? 

A, W marched till th 'y c me to the m ost convenient road to 
their destination and they Idt us. 

Q. A nearly as ),OU can recollect in what time did you reach 
lhe JaJlianwal Bagh p 

A. I think it was about 5 or 5- '5 p .m. I could not ay . I did 
not note the lime. 

· Whe n YOll a rrived at the J aJlial'lwaJa Bagh what did you do, 
A. 1 de ployed my troop right and left, ot the urkha on 

the left and the Punjab; on tbe rig ht. 
· I think )'ouhad e ntered by the narrow entrance that leads 

Into th J llianwala Dagh ? A. Ve . 
· You had left 'our mOlor car behind? A. Ye. 
• Did you hllve the Gurkha who were arm ed with Kukris or 

th / were at l~le b c k ? A. T hey lOO had come into Lhe Sa h. 
0 , "hen l/OU had 4 0 Gurkhas and two column of .as men 

e h, rmtd \ itlt rille P A. Y fJ • 

ou id you depl y d 2 oldier to the rig ht and 25 to 
the Ie l th t i ' n the hi h round on the north side f the rect-

o ul r _pace 1 A. Ye" 
· That Is , very convenient piece of land ? A. ery, 
• There are lIer rew entrance and exits t 

., V • I think ne wide nd there might have been 2 or 
11l \l e. it . 1 had neller een the Saah. 
), When ynu got into the B gh wh t did you do 1 

A. I opened fire. 
· At on e p 
· Immedi. tell'. I ha thou ht bout the matter nd dout 
ine iI look tne III re than 30 co nds to m I.e up mr mind 

t what III d~lt , , a . 
( . A te ~rd the crowd what \Va it doing , 
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A. Well, lhey were hoMing a meeting. 'rhere wa a rnlln in 

lhe centre of the place on methin lT rai ed. His rm were mov­
ing abollt. He, , evidently addre in . 

Q. How far was thi man from ou and the milil ry. 
A. When I entered fir t bout S or <} ·d . . He ran away to 

the right and there were good m or Olher. who. ran away and 
climbed over the ,~ 11. 

Q. As I under tand at a di t nce of ome thing like 100 ycls. from 
the Elace where r"u sto\tioned the army there i ridg' . Ye. 

Q. Where wa the JU.'tn who wa ac1dre , ing the crowd as com­
pared wllh til t ? 

A. He wa ab olutel), in the centre of til qll<lre fnr a we 
could judge. 1 sh uld • no rl So or 60 yd . from where my 
troops were dra' n up. 

Q. Wa there a great rna f crOwd 'ituated n th further 
ide of the pia e from here rOil were, i e. n the Olllhern pa rt 

of the Basth ? 
A. Yc, I hould think rna t of them were. 

· lIe CC'lled to be ·urr. unded by them 1 
A . Perhap most of them wer 00 the fur I)er side . 
Q. '0 far a ' you kllelV IVa. ther anything "currlng except 

thl mnn add res Ing p 
A. No, I could not ee an} thing neyond that. 
Q H ow many people were ill the cro wd. 
A. I then e timated them roughly t 5000 1 h Brd fler\\ards 

there we re many more. 

· On the a umption that there wa a crowd of omething 
like Sooo Ii , lening or mort: have you any dOubt th t mnny of 
the people mll t have been unaware or your prod mati n thlll yOll 
i lied in the morning ? 

· It had been well i s ueci and new pre. d very r pi I,. in a 
place like lhat under prevail ing conditi on. AI the same time 
there m r ha\e bt:en a good many wh o had not heard of the 
proclamation. • 

Q. n the assumption that there wa tb 1 Ii k of per)ple being 
in the ero d will) '''ere not aware of the f ('ct malion. did it not 
occur 10 you that it wa~ a proper me ure to a k the crowd to 
di perse before you too It th t step of actually firing? 

A. No, al the tIme I did nOlo I merely fell that my orMrs 
h d not been obeyed. lhat !nullal law was Routed nd that -41 wa 
my d'll)' to immeditl.tely disper e by rille fin:. 

. Before you dispersed the crowd, ad the crowd taken any 
action at all? A. No ir. They had run away a few of them. 

Q. Did tbey start to run away, 
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A.. Yes; When I began to fire, the big mass in the centre 
began to run almost toward tbe right. 

Q. Martial law bad not been proclaimed. Before you took 
that step whkb was a serious step, did you not consider as to the 
propriety of con ulting the Deputy Commis ioner who was the 
civil authority responsible for the order of the city p 

A. There was not any Deputy Commi ioner ta consuit at the 
time . I did not think it wise to ask anybody further. 1 had to 
make up my mind immed iately as to what my action should be. 
I consider~d it from the military point of view that r ought to fire 
immtdiateiy. that if I did nOl do so, I should fail in my duty. 

Q. When you left Rambagh. did it occur to you that you 
might have to fire? 

A. Ve . I had con idered the nature of the duty that I might 
have to fac . 

Q. Did you nOI think It proper to have civil authority with 
yOll before y u took that tep? 

A 1 had a Police mcer with me. 
C. Who is that? A. Me Rehill and Mr. Plomer were there. 

As 1 understand Mr. Rehill and Mr. Plomer came on. the 
cene after you actually commenced firing? 

· I think Mr. Rehill wa there actually while the firing was 
going 011. 

· During the whole lime? 
I d(l not kn w. 1 wa looking at my troop but I saw him 

ther . I did not wait longer Iter the liring and he wa certainly 
there at the end of the firing. 

Q. Bt'f re firing did 'ou a it Mr. Rehill whether in hi judg­
ment It wa neCe. ary to fire? 

· ir. Iy mind \\I made up, as I came along in my 
motor C f , that if my orders were not obeyed, I would fire imme­
di t \\1. 

# In firing \ a it yourohje lto di per e? 
ir. 1 wa going 10 fire until they di per ed. 

1 id the crowd at onee tart to di,per e as soon a you 
. Immedi tel • 

DId you contlnn firin? A. Ye. • 
Q. After the crowd indicated it wa going to dl per e why did 

you J L lOp ? 

· 1 thQu~ht it 111 dUI to go on until it dt per ed. If I fired 
little th ;,affect would Il t be um ient. 1£ I fired a little I hould 

be " roll in ririn tall 
• For whal length of time did the firing go on , 
. It mi ht h ve been 10 minute . it might have been Ie . I 

• • 
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tbink it wa prob bJy Ie from the number of rounds that were 
fired. 

Q. 0 rar a ou could se~ h d the croIVd; tick' in tbeir hands? 
A. I could not ' th t the ' all had. I pre ume that they had 

a number of tick. I knew ~he 'ere oing to he armed with stick . 
. Ha\'e 'ou ever in tlr militiU e perience to u e imilar 

method . (f disper in crowd p 
A. Ne\'er, it w an exceptional ca e. 
Q. What rea II h d ' u to uppo t' th, t if ' u h d rdered 

the a embly to leave tbe B ~h the' would nth vc d ne . 0 WIth­
out the nece ity your firing od cOllti nual I'll in r r 0 length 
of lime? 

A Ye. J t lill' it quite piLle th t I could h ve di persed 
them perh p even without firing. 

Why did 'ou Hot hlwe r COllr, e to Ih t p 
A. They ould have all come b ok and I ughed at 

me and I should have m de what I con Idared rool ot 
myself. 

10 takitlg the ,ction which you :lid, did ou take it u n 
th t b. is viz. that it w. s not much n Arorh ar que 'lion as a 
que. I) n f .~ mrit 'ar rti trict ? 

A. Ye. ir. al; ollltely, I looked up n the CI \YO ,rebel who 
were tr ing to as ault III force to Cllt Ole otT fr m very pI e. 
Therefore, I con ide red it my duty to fire on th m uti I fire well. 

Q. Were there an . other circum t nce th t 'e ghed \ ith you 
when you lOok the po ition to fire? 

~o, ir I looked upon it a my outy and very horrible 
duty. 

Q. After the firing h d taken pI c , I think ou r turned with 
your troop to the Rambagh ? A. Ye" .r. 

Q. nd Oil coulltlng the ammunition it wa found th t t So 
round of rnmunition "ad been fired? 

A. uite right. 
Q. Did you ~ certain the ca ualties ? 
A. I coul f rm a rough e.timate of tlte number (rom the 

number of round that was fired: and [ calcul' teo from tltat r ughly 
that the number would be 30:>. I did nIta' e it to be more than 
300 c- sualtie . 

. You dicl not know th t the ca. ualli were omelhlng lake 
.00 or 500' 

A. I ha\'e een it in the paper . It 

Q. You nnlv know whether you have heen informed or not? 
It w I)methin between 400 and 500 ? 

A. I h \'e een It in the paper. If 1 divided the rounds by 6 
bould be r. arer the mark than if I l\'ided it by 5. 
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Q. Shodting was individual and not volley shooling ? 
A. Tben~ was no volley shooting in the.. service? 

The crowd was very dense? A. ':Iery den ·c . 
It was unlikely that a man shooting II1to the crowct Q. 

miss ? 
would 

A. No, xcept ill certain instances as tbey were running a. 
certain number 01 men was hit-a small perce II tltl!e. was hit as they 
were running along. In lbe centre of the bquare the crowd wa very 
dense. There, as a man directed hi fire, he should net 11I i~s. 

Q. SO that it iN not impossi bll that the Ilumbe r of death 
should be 400 or 500 from the number of rounds ? 

A. Quite possible. 
As regards the removo.l o[ the wounded were you ina posi­

tion to render any aid p 
A. No Sir. not there. I sbould bave gi\'en aid afterward if tbey 

asked for it. II was Ihw 71 f>{ my dU/J' 10 ,-mdtr aid. It was a 
medi a l qUl:btion. 

Q. Next day you issued a proclamation with reference to the 
burying of the deRd in lhese term.: "Thc inhabitant. may burn 
or bur~' th ir dead a SOun as they please. There must ue no de­
mon tration of any kind,"-That was the order? A. Yes .·ir. 

After the firing wlllil was lbe SLate of lhe city on the 14th ? 
A. I went through the Cit)' to ee if my order had been arrie 

out or not. I visited the pickel. All WIIS quiet. 
Q. Martial law I think was actually proclaimed on the 15th ? 
A. Actually at Amrit~ar I belie e n the 15th. It might have 

been later perhaps, I callilot remember. 
Under Marlial Illw a lIumber of orders were i sued? A. Ye • 

• BOlh befole llJd afttlr tbe procl mati lD , 

A. 1 am re ponsible for whal the orders reo They may have 
been is ued by my Bngade 1\1 jor. Dut 1 am rc pon Ible. 

• . I ee in your report ou ay that the cit)' a umed normal 
COlldltion~ p A. Yes, sir. There W 5 ab.olutely no crime. 

Q. If th I is .0 a il nece ary Ib t martia! Jaw bould be 
J roclaimed on the fSth? 

It \ a. i 1\1 rti I law h. d been in exi tence before it , as 
pro \, imed. A they were gelling beller I reI xed the conditions. 

1\1 rtiu.l law had • dera to' been In exi tenee from your 
rrh I? A. AI> olutel ·'ir. It had the -ame e(f6et. 

G neral nyer Impr ion o.bou the Sikhs . . 
Q. id' u on the mornill of the 14th receh'e informatio 

tbat nottler meeting \\. to be held : 
A. Yes. In tbe Golden Temple. 

. W I j nificance di you ltach to that 1 
' II' 

• 



19 Nov 1919] ·.BEFORE H{fJ.~TER COllfilfIT'IEE. 85· 
A. I thougbt that 1 m ight have to fire again pcrhap at the 

mob. If I did so. we should Dave all the Sikh complaining that I 
hyd destro 'e the .olden Temple. \\ ithout firing rUlTlOur was 
going abroad lbal I had de tro 'ed the Golden Temple. Therefore 
if I hac! firee! on it, it would be proof tbat 1 had d estroyed the 

olden temple. 
Q. Tbere . was' no truth in the rumour thai tbe Golden ' 

Temple had been pulled down p 
A. No, ir. It wa oot touched in the lea t. 1 e nt for Arur 

Sing and Sunder Sill\\, i\IajiLhia, olle wa the In ollger of the olden 
Temple and the olher. I ullder tooO, \Va very influenti I. I''H,ked 
them not to allow il nnd if lhe)' reql ired any help I h uld be call d 
to help them. 

Q. Had orne na ty mmour. been afl t as to your action 
with rderence to ome ikb girl., 1 A. Ye sir. 

Q. Did you take menn to dispel the rumollr>? 
A. There wa iron di ciphne at Amril ar. It could nOt be 

po ible but I had to dispel it. 0 I went round. 
Q. You were satisfied there was no truth in it? 
A. Absolutely no trutll. 
Q. As regard flogging that was a form of punishment which is 

reco(tnised in the army? A. oder M, rliijl Law special! '. 
Q. What cio YOII sny aboul public £J gsing Q. ontrn ted with 

private flogging? 
A. A oldier when we lash a man we In II io public. The 

whole regiment is paraded and the viclim i I,. hed in public with 
view to make an impres ion on every wronged er or to m ke an 
imprc -ion on would-be wrong-doer. 

Q. Do you think tbat the arne rtaSon applies when un cr 
Martial law you flog a civilian? 

A. Yes, 1 looked upon it as the ame a it would make good 
impression under Mattial Law. 

Q. Of cOurse accordinll to the old Civil law tbis 1I cd to occur 
in public but for many years thoy h, 'Ie not take II place in public? 

A. 1 see. 
Q. \ ere the e people whipped in public? 
A. Yes, but both ends o£ lhe street ~ ere tlo ed and it did not 

look as a public thoroughfare. 
Q. But people going tbat way could have seen it ? 
A. If lhey Iik.ed to go there they could have seen. 
Q. People \ ho were Jiving there could have seen? A. ))es. 
Q. \Vould it not have been better if that took place in private? 
A. I caonot say it. 
Q. SO far as the inhabitants of the streets were concerned, why 

fibould tbey have liked to see floggi g' 
A. Ilbink the population of Amritsar Is 70,000. " 

<) 
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Q. It i.s a great deal more. It is about 1,00,000. 
A. The crowd were present a.t the .firlng and other places, it 

1vould look as if the majority of these men were in it. A very great 
number were rebels. 

Q. till you must admit in a large population there mu t have 
been many citizens who are not disposed to disorder but were qUite 
willing to obey lawful orders? A. Yes.' 

Q. There was thal narrow minority tbat you had to get mastery 
over l 

A Unfortunately for them owing to the wicken acts of others 
they came under martial law anll if they had to look things like that, 
it might have been unfortunate but under martial law it could not 
have been helped. 

Q. Must you not issue orders so as not 10 permanently alienate 
tbe people Or put them out of sympathy with the administrli tion? 

A. Quile ::l0. Bul we were making examples of people who 
were doing wrong. . 

Dut you mu t at the same time see that you do not condemn 
the innoc nt in puni hing the guilty p 

A. J did not see that 1 wa .. condemning the innocelll . 
Q. Take your orders as regards crawling. What wa" your 

object p 

A. 1 explained that in the statement printed. I felt WOmen 
had been beaten. We look up n women a sacred. I earched 
in my brain for a suitable puni. bment for these aweful ca es. I did 
not know how to meet it There wa a little bit of accidenL in tbat. 
NolV \\Ih n I visit d Ih picket, 1 went down and ordered a Lrian Ie 
to be erected. I felt the street ought to be looked UP'1n a credo 
TlJerefore J po ted picket at both tlnd and told them 'L 0 lndian 
nre to be Howed to pa. along here. I then ala aid if they had 
to p s they mu t go on all fours I It never entered m brain that 
ny en ible m n, nny ane man would under the circum lance 

vol ntnrily go through that street. 

n. Vou promul ated lhat order from the 19th. to the 15th 
of .\pril and Ii Sberwood WA nulted on tbe roth 1 . Ye . 

, hould not our object h ve been to puni h tho I! who w re 
guilt, [ n ult ' 0 far s po ibll! to void puniship8' tho e who were 
innocent' A.Ye 

, t the treet ~ here vou is ued this proclamati n. there are 
m 'n hou e butlin ? . Ye. good many on both ide. 

~. I under tand there are a gllad'many .1I u e that bad 
• no back ntr nce , t all ? . 1 w. not 11\ are of it at the time. 

. U it to b the case that there were m 11)' \ { tbese houses 
ttl t h d Jl k entr nee what ju tification I there in pI. iog n 

'f 
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order which nece itated the inhabitant lawfully re iding to crawl 
on all fours when the h d to Ie e their hou es ? 

A. They could leave at all other times. My picket wa there 
-from 6 A. M. to 8 P. r. I do not think it cau ed very great 
inconvenienc.. If the had ulfered little under martial Jaw it 
-would do no h rro. They c uld get nece ' arie. of life by other 
mean. II couLd not be' elped if tbey h' d LO suffer a light amount 
of iocoov oience. . 11 w could they ? 

A. Mo t of them had b ck rltlance, I was. told. Tho e 
who bad to t nece . rie could 10;0 nod dopt impr vised mean 
or go out after 8 p . I. 

. Thi order mi ·ht h ve ver different effect fr m the effect 
which you wi lied in Ie d of bein a ju t punishm 'nr 0 th e who 
had offtnded; it could cau e a great d e I of m·f elio among th e 
who would te ent It, people \\h had nOl been re pon ible for the 
act that w done? 

•. Amrit at bell ved ver' badly and most of the inh bit nt 
either gave liS itance or were only wiling to ee wuat w going 
to h ppen. 

They did not offer any help until after the trouble wa over. If 
they Uoffered a lillIe inconvenience it could nm be helped. 

Q. You will admit during the period of turmoil it i difficult 
thing for the peaceful citizen to give ASS! taoce in quelling Lhe di -
turbances. I it not ju t 011 that account that extreme remedy be 
confined to the mob a di tingui hed from law·abidiug citiz n ? 

A. Ye they were ab tCllct law abiding citi:r.ens ; but 1 think n 
that occ:lsion I only thought of puni hing the wicked. 

Q. But this street \Va not the ltIreet that \Va frequented by 
tho e who had beaten Ii herwood ? 

A. No. But I had erected a pi tform there in the middle of 
the treet and thought whell I g I tlltse men who h d b aten her 
1 \ 'ould la h them down. 1 meant to I . h th\:m. I al90 wanted to 
keep the treet. what I callte! acred. Therefore 1 did not w nt 

ybody to p s lilrongh .it. It was n ccident that tire. e men had 
to pa through. Q. Th~re were a number of person made to crawl , 

A. 1 did not hear all that.-if they took anybody dcliber tely 
it was not done deliberately by me. It \Ii. a pure ccident. My 
ord r wa: differelilt. A they were going my ergeant made them 
do \~bat I had ordered. But I never imagined that any cnsible man 
would go there \·oluntarily. 

Q If you wanteq to geL people aW4Y was it not a meaningJJs 
order. 

A. It \\'3 only with a view to making the street hat I cal! d 
acred. I wa earching my brain for some uitable punishment 

... : the time and the order made was all thal I could bave done. 
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You had it enforced from the 19th to the 25th April ? 
A. I think that i quite right. I wanted to revoke it but I en 

away on the 21 t and so the order was kept in force up to that time. 
Q. What led to its being super eded ? 
A. I recei ved an order to that effect. 
Q. ' If you had not received it what was your intention ! 
A. WeIl, afler I returned I presume I' would. have taken tbe 

picket off. 1 had a great deal to think of. After the men vere 
lashed there was no need of keeping lhe pickets there. 

When were these 6 men la hed ? 
A. I think it wa about the 20th . 

If it was on the zoth there wa no object in going 00 with 
that after the 20th? 

A. I had overlooked the matter. Ther wa certainly no 
object after these men had bee n Ill. hed. 

. "regard the men \\'ho were la hed all of tbem were men 
\\ ho had a auhed. 

A. Yes, so 1 am told. 
Bul all of them were not la hed in con equence of a ault 

on Mi ' herwood bllt for some other offence ? 
A. Ye, they were tried. If these are the men they 1U t be 

lashed in that Sireet. 
Q. Were they lashed in that street before they had been tried 

for a saulting Mi sherwood, 
A. '0. J did not wait till the Prov t Martial. 
(J. Therefore 1 do not s.;e it IVa a puni hment that \l'a meted 

out in consequence of that. h wa ' in re pect of omething like 
breach of di cipline ? 

A. I uppo" when] found that the e re the men I'ho had 
beaten l"IIi ' her\\()od . I aid that i Ihe place to I h them. 

Q. I uld under, tand if they had heen I shed at the time but 
tl . were not la hed except [or another offence. I do not quite 

e how)- u chieved nything b . It I'ing them I hed there? 
A. Everyb d knew that they had bealen:'l[i h rw d. () 

hing th m there appeared t III til be proper. The ' e aped 
Lig er puni IIm ent. ] thought the e were tile men wh n I 
It d thel . 

<,J. mplaint h \'e b en mad th l unci r lilitary law, a 
numLer of Il:r n of mrit-ar, oceup'ing po . tl~n o[ re pon ibility 
in tit ciet· were rre led, nd kepi in u lody for a long tim 

then r Ie sed WIthout allY h r bein' preferred ag io t them. 
o 'ou know nylhin f bout th t ? 

. J d n l rem mber anything about lh l. I believ there 
wer ertain number of men in the Fort. The ', ere [ryin to 
set them Vied far the could. j T order were to b vc them 
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tried a oon a the could. But there wal a great deal of doubt as 
to who were to try them, the Provo t Martial , the pecial ourt or 
an body el e. I t mig bt h ye been Ib t owing to tbat tbere was a 
little delay. . 

· 1n connection, ith tbei r being taken through the tr et 
and their hay in been ubjected to the ind ignit ' of hand-cuff, what 
do you ? • 

A. 1 think the " ere probabl h nd·cuffed. T hat i the ordinary 
method of dealin \\ ilh them who had c mmitted offence under. 
maniallaw. 

· Before they b ye been tried ? 
A. Ye. I think th t would e tbe rigbt com e. 
Q. A re ards trial , tb re were tw et of tribunal e t up by 

the Government of India nd the umm ry c urt tb t you et up ? 
A. Tbat' it. 

· Had you nythin" to do with the regul tion of tri the 
cases under the pecial court ? 

A. No, ir . tbey wele tried by the Pr vo t Marti I. 
· \ hat wa the law re lt rding procedure ; J th re a speci 1 

army regulation or pecial martial I \ regulation ? . Yo, ir. 
all you upply me with copy of the regu! tion , 

A. No, iT, 1 have not got one. 
Q. With reference to the commi ion i.e. pecial tribuna! you 

bad nothing to do ? A. ' 0 . 

· T hat wa a maller entirely regulated by the court con­
stituted 1 A Yo . 

ExamInation by Sir Chlmanlal Setalvad. 

· When ou arrived tire ci vi l authori'ie. handed over the 
<:harge to you ? 

A. They id :it did not exi t and 1 hould t Ite command. 
T here wa complete lawle . nes in the city, they . id. 

\Va charge formally handtd·over to 'ou 1 
A. Ye , in writing. That i in appendix to the r port. 

Under what authority wa thi ll done, 
A. 1 do not know-under orne civil law. 

Can you tell me under what civil law, 
A. No. Any ay it handed Over to me. 
Q. Had you any' order from uperior authority to take civil 

chclrge in tbat manner ? 
A. I wa the offil:er commanding the di tric t and therefore if 

the civil la\v cea ed it beCAme my duty to take over. 
You thought you were com petent to take over charge 
From tbe military point of \-iew, ce rtainly. 
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Q. When you arrived you beard of the event of the loth .. t 

AmritS/l.r ? A. Yes. 
. Did it trike ou that the armed force in Amrit ar at 

the disposal of the civil authoritie \Va not ufficient to cope 
with the ituation? 

A. Ye, it had I<pparently proved it elf not to be ufficient. 
Q. If the civil authoritie had ufficient 'military aid upplied to 

them could they cope with the ituation? 
A. They had to trv lhe thing. The very best expedient und er 

the circum tance wa that they should h nd over the charge to me 
a the officer commanding the di trict, con idering the ituation all 
round. 

. Neither you nor Mr. Irvin'" con idered the po ible 
alternative of the civil authority carrying with ufficienl military aid 
from you? . 

A. o. 1 co#uld act In ;\id of civil power-that i in mall 

A. 
( . 
A. 

A. 

happenerl , 

am 

Irving told 'ou lhat he \ a 

\ er could be ried ith 

hi , h I h pened right. " 
• 
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Q There \Va no di CIl 'on bel\veen you and .Mr. Irving on 
that subject ( A. There wa no discu ion, 

· n the 13th variou ,rre t l ere made in the cit)' r A. Ye • 
Q. Who arre ted them ? 
A. 'rhe Police 1>'ith tbe Id of the military. I wa there in case 

I was wanted. 
It wa tbe Police who arre ted ? 

Q. Were lho e person arre ttd under i ~Ied by 
civil autborit ? 

A. There w no warr III a f r a I kllOI . r Iilitary 
law we could arre t them . Dut the n fl lib! bnd Ibeir warraln. 
You rna ' fin tl that Ollt (rom tbe Polic . 

Q. 0 tar 'OU were ware w there nil)' investigati n bore 
the were arre ted? 

A. 1 thought the Police knl!w Ih ir dut and they did their 
duty in the ordin r way. 

· The arre t of these per on lVere tm I ft to the rdi n ry 
civil a IIthorilie" ? 

A. When tbey aid this i the man who h murd red. 1 
said 'arrt' t'. 

Q . • Were the persons hand·cuffed and marched through the 
city? 

A. ThaI I do not know. They were probably hand. ulf d. 
· T ken thruugh the city, 

A. I cannot ay. They prob bly h d to 0 through the city. 
o 'a any sugge tion m, de at your con ultation to t ke 

ome dra tIC military measure against the city on the u til ~ 
A. J was to enforce my order. 
Q. No other pedal measure ? 
A. I will tell you. I cannot think o[ allY other pecial roe Bure. 

'Q. It bas been ugse ted that at one time it lVas can Idored 
de irable to bomb rd (he city. 

A. I know nothing about it. 1 never thought it nece. r). ·It 
may have been neces ar,. I ler. It all depellde on the beh viour 
of the crowd. 

· There is no truth in the BUgge tion, it wa considered on 
the J I th ? A. 1 ne~er heard of it. 

· n the hth y u Issued proclamati n No. I, n tbe 13th 
o. z was procl imed in tbe treet In the manner you have 

de cribed ? A. Yes. ,. 
· It ay: " a praces ion of any kind is p rmitted to 

par.idelb~ ueets in the cilY or an)' p<lrt of the city or outside 
of it any time. Any such procession or gatbering at 4 will be 
reated as an unlawful a embly and will be dispersed by force . •• • • • 
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()E arms if necessary,"-Does not that language refer to procession 
parading the street? A. Yes. 

Q. Is not the language open to this construction P ITO 

procession of any kind is permitted to parade the streets in the 
.city or any part of the city :tnd the prohibition is no procession 
·should parade any part of the city? A Y es 

Q. It is a,gainst parading oE proce sion ? ·A. If~. 
Q. That is the substantive prohibition ? A. Yes. 
Q. Then follows the penalty with r :gard to such pr;)cession ? 
A. Yes. 
(. Viz., parading the street? A. Yes. 
Q. Or gathering of 4 men in tbe street? 
A. If it is only in the treets that they were not to meet-lhat 

lis certairtly not the meaning. 
Y~u have een tbe olden T emple? A. Ye~. 

O. Y ou have seen that q uarter where it is situated? 
A. Ye. 1 do not know it very well , J went once or twice. 
Q. Your proclamation was not reao out in that quarter? 
A. 1 cannot tell you. It mu t have been done 

Will you be surprised to hear that it WdS not? 
A. If it was not so it may be right. 
Q. You heard of the ]allianwala Bagh meeting at 1%-40 ? 
A. Yes, somewhere about that. 
Q. When you heard that you did not lake any step to warn 

the people against going to that place? 
A. I had been warnin/l them all the morn ing. 
Q. But after you heard you did not? 
A. No, ] did nol. 1 began to organise my forces to think 

about it. 

Q. You did not think it would be de irable, for instance, to 
put po~ter at tbat place ? 

A. There wa no time to do all tbat, 1 had to Jook sharp and 
organi e my troops and think what 1 wa to do. The situation 
w very eriou. It wa much more eriou tban now it seem. 

When you heard of it you mdde up your mind that if 
it \Va held you, ould go and tire p 

A. A I have aid, I did not t fir l think they would go 10 

th t . but if the' were defying my order after aU ~hat I had done 
t hM made up m mind practical! lb' t 1 would tire immediate­
l' In order 10 save the tnilitar ituation. The time had come 
, ')en we ould delay no longe r. And if I did 0, I wa liable ~o 
he court-m rtialled. 

Two armoured c, r were there p A. Ye. 
The ' h d machine gun ? A. Ye . 
When you took (hem,'ou meant to u e them 1 
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A. U nece ry. If neee ity aro ,if I was attacked, I pre­

sume tbat I ould u e them. 
Q. When ou arri ed there you wer not able to take the 

rmoured car in, beca tbe w to narro l A. Yes. 
uppo ing the p a e \ uffici nt to allow the rmoli-

red car to 0 in YO\1 would have opened 11re with the 
machine guo!i ? ' 

A. I thi nk the pr b bilily i 1e . 
Q. In tb tea e the c u !tie \ uld h ve been hi h r l A. Yes. 

· You did not n fire b th m hi ne gun by acc ident 
bee u e the could n be t in l 

A. Ve. It t hey ould b got tn, the prob blllty would 
be that 1 would op n fire wlti\ he m chine una 
straigh t. 

· 1 tiler, en ral, a you have ul in our report, your ide 
in taking tbis action wa re lIy to trike terror? 

A. e, if they di ob yed my ord r. If lhey completely 
di obeyed I • tbey w re rebel an I mu t not tre t them with 
gloves on. 1" goin to give them a Ie 

Q.; Your idea wa , 1 put it t ou, t 
A. all it what you like, I w In t unl h them. 
Q. To trike terror n t only on th immedi te crowd or the 

Police but all throu h t b~ Punj b ? 
A. uite so. ly id a w that it h uld m ke wide Im-

pre iOIl thou hout tb p. njab. 
· Producing suffici nt moral eff ct not nly on tbo per onl 

but more pecially tbrou hout tbe punj b-that w our view? 
A. I w nted to reduce the number f the rebels. 

• ou tbought it would b rillht thing in order to lave the 
Btili h Raj; th .. t i wbat y u thoug!)t l 

A. Ye" I wa olng to reduce the moral of the enemy. If they 
were going to tight me they were rtbel nd I wa goln to ah t 
tbem. 

· You thought the Briti h Raj wa In gre t dan or ? 
A. No, h' a mighty thing, it would n t be \0 great danger. 

But it might bring about more blood- heel, more mutiny, more 
10 5 f live. But the Brili h Raj would not be In dan er. 

· You nev~r tbougJlt Itl A. Never. 
· Your object wa not to ve the rall h Raj? 

A. T o ave live, to ve other place being looted, to prerent 
anybody who tbought tb y could mao e to mutiny. It " II I hor­
rible act. at the me lime it wa a mercif"l act and it required lots 
of doio 

· Did It occur to you tbat you were really doing g reat diner­
vice bf r iving discon tent ? 

• 7 • • 
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~ A. No, I tho!-'Sb~ it was my' duty to do. it at · the $am~' time. 
But I also realised It would be the means of saving, and any man, 

·any reasonable being with a sense of justice, would see that I was 
doing a me,.d/ul act and that they ought to be thankful to me for 

,doing it. 
Q. But did this aspect of'the matter strike you at all ? 
A. Neve~. I thought it would do a jolly' lot. 'for good to the 

people. 
Q. When you entered the garden and gave order to fire your 

men fired standing? 
A. Kneeling. There were a few who were not kneeling but 

by the laws of firing these men were knee1ing. 
Q. Did you observe, General, after the fir e was opened, there 

were lots of people in the crowd who lay down on tbe ground in 
order to save 'tbemselve? A. Yes. 

Q. Your men continued to fire on those so laying on the 
ground? 

A. I cannot say that. Some were running at the time, some 
were lying down. They fi red where I directed them to fire. They 
ometimes had ceased firing and 1 redirected them to fire. Firing 

was controlled and was a instrllcted. 
Q. Did you direct on people lying o n the g round? 
A. I probably selected-there might have been men layinlJ 

down-but there were other targets, men who were standing. 
Q. After firing, did you take any measure for the relief of the 

wounded? 
A. Do you mean 1m mediatel y after? A. Yes? 
A. No, certainly not. It wa not my duty. It was not my job. 

The ho pital were open. They could go there but tbey did not 
becau e they though t they would be arrested. 

Q. No act,ion wa ta"en for dealing with the dead? 
A. Tbey asked for permis ion to bury the dead. 

. That wa much later? 
A. 1 do n t thlUR it was much later. IVb recollection is when 

1 ot back to the Rambagh they came and a 'ked me. It never en­
tered my head that they won't go to bo pit I and if people' ere 
like! r to go forward they could . 

. Thl action of 'our., you now know, ba. resulted in the death 
of 400 or 500 people nd a con iderable 'DI,Illlber of wounded? 

(.A. e . 
That action of. yours wa approved b Ibe Punjab GoVer,D­

menl? 
A. I believe o. It. was. or cour e, there wa a wire 'to 'that 

effect. 
Q. Y u wire information to the Lieutenant-Governor? 
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A. I might have, but I cannot say at this distance of time. He 

was probably wired to by my B rigade Major. 
Q. You say tbe Lieut.enanl-G{)vernor approved that action of 

your? A. I presume so. 
Q. 'ere any order ,promulgated to tbe eITe t that pe pi' 

boulcl alaam Military officer~, that if they did not do so they were 
to be puni bed?' • 

A . Under ~Iartial Law ev~ry man 
Officer Commanding whether it b 
manner or by taking off hi bat. but ever 

. Were order actu lIy promulgat 
A. I.do not know. I cannot N:mem er, but that I the ordinary 

cour e: They must sa!ute. If th y came un cr Marti I L w, they 
mu t under land that. Every Indian t<rIOW til l he ought to 
salaam. 

Q. A large number of people were ab olut Iy Ul~educaled ? 
A. Yes. 

They could have no conception of Inrtial Law? 
A. They all know aJaaming. They III. m big p opl. They 

salaam ~ajas. 
Q. • What I Yant to sugge t to you is that I rge number of 

people did not re Ii e that it wa part of 1\1 ttl t L w that they 
should salaam Brili h Officers ? 

A. That may be so. But at the time they knew it wa p rt of 
their duty. If I happen to ee my se ni or officer I s lute him. India 
is the place of salaam Ind ians know and ought to know it. 

Q. They ought to salaam every Briti h fficer ? 
A. Most certainly yes, if you ask my opinion. 
Q. Every British officer? 

A. Not every Indian should alute every British officer. T here 
are l ndian officers of higher rank . we do not expect them to alute. 

Q. They must alute every British Officer. 
A. Usually you alute our 'uperior Under M rtiai Law they 

are to alute me just like any man in the camp. 

Q. And is it your vieW that it i obligatory on the citizens al 0 
to salute every l\1ilitary officer under you? 

A. I think there was a rebellion, a great deal of rebellion and 
tbat it would be ju'st as well that tbey should. 

Q. They were bound to alute? 
A. They were bound to salute me. I think under Martial L\w 

they ought to salute their superiors. I do not think it is a very 
stern order. 

Q. Were people actually arrested for not salaaming? 
A. I tbink not actually for . not salaamln~ but the] were im-

pertinen\. when I questioned them. " • T 

• • 
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Q. Not for salaaming or failing to salaam? But when asked 

.they gave impertinent answer? ' 
A. Well, I will give you an example. I said why don't you 

salaam. He said I do not know how to salaam. On that under 
Martial Law I arre~ted him, 

Q. In connection with 'this salaaming people were kept in 
custody for 10 days? • 

A. No, I do not know If that is right. It may be. 
Q. Were not people made to crawl on the street for this? 
A. But those who were impertinent and were arrested oy me 

were, by some accident, sent back to that street where my pickets 
were. My sergent said: You crawl, that is the order ~nd they 
had 10 crawl. ' 

Q. There were some m en unc()nnected with the a sault on Miss 
Sherwood but arrested for impertinence and were marched through 
the st\eel and made to crawl? 

A. They had nOlhing to do with the Sherwood case. They 
were men who were impertinent to me as [ went t~ere. I only gave 
them an example. These Inen were made to crawl not necessarily 
because they a aulted Miss herwood. 

Q. But there were other people who were guilty of bre ach of 
Fort discipline or impertinence anrl were marched through that 
street and made to crawl ? 

A. Yes. by accident. 1 po ted my pickets. I did not know 
the Police were at the far enlls. They arrived at the near end of 
the street and my ergent aid, 'the order is to crawl, you crawl: 
My intention wa'; not to make tbese particular men crawl. After 
the 19th they went voluntarily to crawl. 

· 'After the 13th the city \Va a pattern of law and order'­
that applies to a period ubseqllent to the dislurbl\nces? A. Yes. 

· an yOll tell us what w s the need of continuing l.1axtial 
Law over the period' was it in fact continued ? 

. A No harm would be done. It was very justly administered. 
and if I overlooked in any way to take it off when it was necessary, 
it was my job. When they told me it was to be off, it was off 

· 'It was continued because no harm was done and it was 
ju tl admi nistered 1 A. Ye. 

, But there wa no particular necessity of qmtinuing it ? 
A. Law and order had come back., 1 here was a period when • 

M,.rtial Law "'a not nece sary, bu it did not continue for all too 
long. That i aU. 

EXIl.mined by Pandit Jagat Narain:- . 
· You rrived at Arndt a:r at or ·10 p.m., on the 11th 1 A. Yes. 

'Q. ere you informed th t on the 11th, the civil authorities 
were able to make arrests in the city 1 , . '-c. 

t ~ 
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A. I was not informed of that fact. I see it .in the report there 

ere arrests made on the II tho 
Q. You were not informed of this fact? . Not then. 
Q On the 12th? A. 0 far as I remember, 110. 

· Were you Informed of the fact that on the 11th the people 
of Amrilsar approached the civil aurboritie for the purpo e of 
burying tbeir d.ead and that cerlain order were pa ed by the 
Deputy Com . sioner and that tho e order \ ere 0 eyed? 

· I did hear that they had a ke for permi ion to bury the 
dead bodies and that certain order were i ue to them. 

Q. Were you informe of ny I wle ne s or act of ... iolence 
<:ommitted by the mob on the 11th 1 A. No. 

· .\ ere you informed of any lawle ne r an ct of violence 
committed by. the mob 011 the nth I 

A. I hould think, no. 
Tneref re m y 1 take it that up to the 13th, the only Infor­

mation which ou b d about the behaviour of the mob in ide tile 
<:ity wa a to \ h t they did on the l oth? 

A. Ye, 0 f r as Amdt ar city wa conce rned : there wa 0 
further, lawle ne except that on the 10th . 

.• The only inr rm tion upplled to you wa a to what they 
had done on the loth I A. I think, ye . . 

· You have repe tedly de cribed the citizen of Amritsar as 
rebel ; therefore m y 1 take it th t your conelu ion w ba ed on 
that information supplied to you? 

A. Not only on the po Ition in Amrit r but out Ide Amrltsar 
a well. 

Q. I m talking of Amritsar only 1 
A. 1n nty mind 1 had n t nly h t happened th re but also 

outSIde . 
• Q. On th 11th or on the morning (the nth t the r ilway 

tation, a number of names of a itator were given to you by 
A hraf Khan 1 

A. On tbe night of the (I th. It would pr cUe lIy the 
morning of the 12th. . 

Q. Can 1 get anywhere the n mes of the per ons taken by you 1 
A. I am afraid you cannot have them, 1 h ve not get them. 
Q Do I under tand ,that the paper I not in exi tence, 
A. Iy Brigade l\t:ajor may pos ibly ba e got it, IIe is a very 

good Brigade fajor. He may have it. • 
· May I take it that all tho e persons who e name were given 

to you by A braf Khan were arre ted unde your orders? 
A. 1 cannot say they were arrested. I do not remember 

if tbey were arre ted. But there were certain name of persoDS. I 

" 
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was toid they had done certain things. Undoubtedly, 1 said,-arrest 
them . . 

Q. You were given this information by AshraflChan ? 
A. 'rhe Superintendent and Mr. Irving were there. 
Q. The information was given by these officials 1 
A. There may be other officials who have that information. 
Q. If it be a fact that neither the police nor the official were 

aware of the fact as to who were the persons who were' respo ible for 
the assault on Miss Sherwood, as to who were the( per ODS who 
burnt the National Bank, a to who were the persons responsible for 
the murder of Mr. tewarl and other per on . they could not have 
given you then any information on this point. 

A. Why do you assume that ? 
Q. Are you aware that it was not up to the 23rd April that any 

reliable information wa given to any person in authority as to who 
were the person~ oncerned in all the e orr.urrence p 

A. 1 do not under tand that. Lot of person were arrested. 
They have known it. 

. or the first time approver Han raj gave information to the 
polke on the 23td April as to who were the per on concerned in 
the different occurrences and up to that time there wa nO,other 
evid nee ? 

A. Hansraj IVa not the only man who gave that information. 
Q. Can you tell me as to whether you have any other 

information p • 
A. I know nothing about it. I went there as a military m n. 
Q. Supposing the authoritie them elve were not aware of the 

individual person who committed the offence. they would not be in 
a po Ition to give you the names. 

A. If they were not , they 1V0uld not be. 
Q. If the per on concerned in the a ault were nOl known to 

authority, how did you come to the conclusion that these i.' per OIl'S 

were the per ons actually concerned in the a ault? 
A. How am I to a ume that the authorilie dId not kno, thi 

becau e Han r j had not poken. There were lots of others who 
could glv information to them. 

Who was tbe officer who informed you that the e six person 
who were flogged for breach of fort di cipline were concerned with 
the as aull on Mis herwood. . 

A. The man who arre ted them told me that, I pre ume. 
I cannot remember. And if tbey arrested them wrongly tbe ' 
h d "0 an wer for their wrong doing. 

. I it not a fact that except the e s~x: persons, no - 0 e 
el wa ever aceu ed of having committed any breach of [ir· 
tiat La\ regul tion In ide the Fort and no other perlon 
bas been mentioned A. Ye. 
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I it not an extraordinary coincidenc that the e' si 
who ere suppo ed to h ve taken p rt in the assault 

on Ii herwood "ere the only per on who committed any 
breach of fort rule . 

A. Jore than a hundre per n wer rre led 1 
Q. Up to th t time? 
A. From time to time. orne in the fort and orne in the 

Ramb h. • 

tri 

unnece 

out of the 

What have 'ou to ay to the ug lion, if il be m , 
that becau e the e ix per on up po ed ri htly or wrongly 
by you or other officer to hnve t k n part in tit ult n 
l\Ii ~herwood therefore on the pr lext of th breach of Fort 
di cip ne, but a a matter of revenge th were flogged? 

A. I ay it is a wron g sug e. lion . 
· • on 't you think it wrong to inmct an ' punl hm nt n 

undertrial pri oner in connection \\ith the aull on 11 
Sherwood? 

A. No, They were not. If ther committed n offence 
under martial law th!'y mil t come. 

Q. Why were they not flogged in ide the Fort? 
A. I wanted them to be flog ed where Ii hen 0 

wa a aulted , 
• Q. Similarly with reg rd to the crawling order, Th. t order 

wa promulgated by you in ide the city ' 
A. I would not say th t-

· You ay in your stalement here. ' I then posted two 
Briti h pickets, one at e ch end of the treet, with or er to 
allo no Indian to pass and that if they h d to pa they 
mu t go through on 11 fool' ". I infer that you p ed thl 
order when you were in ide the city 1 A. Very likely. 

· You have already informed tbe ommittee and have al 0 
tated your tatement that you nev r imn 'ned that any ane 

man ould voluntaruy go through under these condition ? 
. A. Yes that is ab olutely true. • 

Q. Is it not a very e~traordinary coincidence-I call it 
deliberately extraordinary-tbat you pas ed thi order which yoU" 

~ . . 
• 
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-consid'ered at that time would be a dead letter because you 
thought that no Strne person would voluntarily go through the 
street on all fours, and all of a udden you moved a few 
hundred yards and then you felt the necessity of arresting f2 

persons [or no edifyi ng offence and these were the very u 
'Per80ns who for the first time obeyed this order. • 

A. 1 IVe!nt to the city after posting my picket. There were 
-certain insolent inhabitants and I arre ted them an handed them 
-over to the police. I do not see anythi ng extraordinary in it. 

Q. ln your opinion the polke were quite competent to do it 
duty ? 

A. J presume they may have been. 
Q. On the J 3th when you le ft Ram Bagh rur the Jall.ianwala 

Bagh, i3 it not a f-tct that you practically on two or three ides 
surrounded the Jallianwala Bagh with pickets and you left a picket 
at ultanwind gate? 

A. T .hink they were at Lahore Gate, Hal1 gate and another 
gate. At the other gale I do not think there was, there '\a a 
,picket but my information is there wa not. 

· If a woman i found wounded at the Sultanwind Gate, 
an y u give us an explanation how she! wa found there I 

Il the 12 th or 13th? 
n lhe 12th. A. I do not know. 

If it \V ~ on the 13th ? 
A. It mi ht be po sible a slray bullet from tbe Jallianwalla 

Bagh might have hit her. Beyond that I caunot give any ex­
.pl, nation. 

· If orne wounded per on were found on the econd storeys 
f buildillg • there how do you explain that. 

A. Probably bullet h ve trayed. 
Q. If there be m rk of blood on the econd nd third fio~r 

of buildin • would it not how lh t there wa overhead firing. 
· ertainly not. I never gave direction fo r overhe d tirin • 

1 (itr cled fire per on lIy nd I can tell you what orders I ave. 
1 never ve any order for overhead firing. Certainly not. Ab a­
IUlel not. 

moment' thought a to what 0 Id 
these 400 or 500 killed in ide t e 
wounded, a 10 bo tbey will be aUen· 

• ded I b their rei Lion to ho water, auld be given to tbe 
ou ded? Y u ne er c red f r them? A. Ho ' do you know. 

Q. H, w s it ibId 
• The)' could bring them when the liked. 
. If th y h done tbere disobeying the curfe order you 

ould not mind it ? 
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a ked for permi sion and I g~ve it and said the 
19 Nov '919) 

A. They 
~ould go. 

Q. Your permi ion \ for the removal of the dead bodies. 
Did you make n procl malion ying th t to-day I modify the 
~urlew order? A. I Howed them to go nd remove th de d. 

id ou in ny y modify the curfew order? 
It \ probably modified. 

Q . nth '3th ? 
A. Probably. I think 'ou will find it ill the e pap r . 

Did ou i u any procl m tion aying '1 modify the order 
and people are allowed t rem 10 out ide up t 1 2 o'cl ck', 

A. I allowed them to go and talce the de d. I th ugbt they 
would De removed b~ night. 

ThaC i no n wer to m que tion ? 
A. 1 cannot tell 'ou 1 allowed them t go nd bring their 

dead. Therefore rder mu t h ve be n p cd. 
II the order \ mod ified , how i it th t y u went into tbe 

dty t 9P. m. to ee if our order wa oh ved or not? 
A. J don't think r went out at 9. I think it w sit r. 

Thi i. the fir t time that vo have been informed that 
the der h d be n modified. Permi into remove the de d w s 
i ued on the 14th ? A. Ye. 

o long a ) 011 rem ined in Amrlt, r w, s ther ny 
~vidence, ap rt from tbe inference, plae d before you to how th t 
there w an organized con pir cy ? 

A. From what wa happening in Amritsar and el where I 
formed the opinion that th re w a wide pre d conspira y. 

Q. p rt from inference wa there allY ngible evidenco 
produced bc:fore you to how th t there wa org nized con piracy 
\n mriLSar or what happened there the re ult (th I 
~on piracy, 

· They were talking all Clrt of thing. Th re mu t have 
been org nized conspiracy all along the line as far II I can juege. 

· "b n you went to Jalli nwala B h there w no ap re-
heD Ion of your being attacked? 

.~ Tbere wa certainly a pos ibility. 
· Did y u take a Jar e number of lice aillo with you to the 

Bagh Dd left them out ide ju t 10 e to it? 
A. I do not know how m J'Iy poli emen wele there, nor did t 

~are. • 
When you' arrived at Amrit ar on the 11th tbere were 475 
oJdiers aDd 7(0 Indian soldiers and on the ... ther were 530 
oldiers and 635 Indian soldier? A.' uite right. 
Your ource of information a to what was happening in the 

• • 
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c1,ty 'on' the 12th and, 13th-exept what you saw with your own 
eyes-was Ashraf Khan and nobody else? 

A., There were officers and lot" of people. 
Q .' Lots of people visited you on the uth and 13th ? 
A. I cannot say. • 
Q. Lots of people came and , gave you information? 
A. I say, not. . 
Q. uposing between 400 and 500 were k~led in tbe 

Jallianwalla Bagh. What would be the proportion of the wounded? 
A. You will h?ve to multiply it by three, it may be more. 
Q. IS it pos ible that one bullet would kill two or three persons? 
A. Quite possible. • 

You had already made up your mind at Rambagh that you 
had a very unpleasant duty to perform and that you would have tt> 
do it? A. Yes. 

Q. Did you make al'y ambulance arrangements ? 
,A. 0 time to do that. 
Q , Was it brought to you r notice that the dead bodies were 

mutilated at night p A. Never heard of it. 
Q, Are you or are you not aware that so far as India 

is concerned Martial ] ,aw can be introduced only by c~rtain 
individuals? A. Yes. 

Q . In any fixed area ' can any officer proclaim Martial Law 
and appnint officers for the purpose of trying cases? • 

A. If thel e is a rebemon one would as ume charge, the 
man on the spot, and it will have the effect of Martial Law. 

Q. You could not get these orders from the Lieutenant 
Governor either by aeroplane or wire ? A, We could have not. 

Q. Could you not have obtained orders from the Viceroy? 
A. Absnlutely not. The situation was developing very fast. 

. Q. You would not wire to the Lieutenant overnor tellin" 
him that the situation was erious and get orders ? 

A. I think the L ieutenant Governor knew the situation as 
much a I did. 

. an yOIl tell me why \\as it not po ible for Mr Ir-
ing -to inform the LieuLnanl overnor that l\f rtial Law s hould 

be intr du ed on the evening of the loth ? 
A. 1 ay all thing re po ible. 

f Q. When he wa !randing over charge to you did you 
a k him wby he did not ask permi ion of the superior 

uthorP,ie p 
A. No It wa handed over to me and 1 thought I caul 

m n ge it 1\11 rilt'hl 
. I t to sk 'ou a que lion on the point whether you 

II. iUmed authorlt on the ground that you {elt that the sil~alio 
l 
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demanded it or because the Deputy ommissioner had given · you 
charge and that written document ( 

A. I the Officer Commanding in Amritsar a well as 
Jullundur. 1£ the ci ill w failed reed to operate it i my duty 
to uke things in hand until I get further order on the subject. 
So I took the ituation in m h nd. 

Q. After the civil' uthority wa handed over to you and you 
sume upr e authorit in Amrit ar you could act independently 

by virtue of your 0 n position ( 
A. As In extrem ell e I could. If th ituation suddenly 

developed which emanded my umpllon f re pon ibllity it was 
my du~ to do so. 

Q. May I know the conditi n pre cribed which would 
(;on titute an"extreme c e hich would j tf u to a ume that 
command? 

A. Well I honestly con Idered that there ,n rebellion and 
that it was m duty to take the re pon ibillty. 

Q. You had no orders? A. No. 
Q. There mu t be ome order , written or verbal? 
A. I do not know of any order which will exactly uit what 

bapplned. 

Difference Betwteen Rebelllon And Civil Disorder. 

Q. What is the diffrerence between rebellion nd civil di order ( 
Do you consider them one and the me tbi n or dlHerent thing ( 

A. I hould think if civil law h cea ed that a reb Ilion is out. 
I bould think the two thing are practically the mo. Dut I am 
not a great expert on law . 

. In appr clatin the situ tion which would en bl you to 
t e r tic power over a large number of Hi rnje lY ' subjects 
you bave to exerci e your judgement and ee whether there were 
certain thin s which ynu ould c II re ellion. I 1\ ume you have 
a very clear nOlion a to what rtbellion mean . . 

Q. I lhink . I have to run the n k but I have ot to do it. 
Q In your opinion cea ing of law and rd r Is tan mount to 

the exi tence of rebellion? 
A. I should ay very nearly that. If there i something serious 

going on rebellion would come in. 
. You certainly under tand what rebellion means ( 

A. I think 1 do. Bu t we may make error in judgment. • 
, Ver)' well , Dut certainly you cannot have any doubt as to 

:bat con titutes rebeli ion ( 
A. In my own mind I will ay thi i rebelJ10n i another man 

will come and y this i not rebellion, I knew when 1 began to _ . 
• 
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ta~e responsibility • . If I wa:s wrong in my judgment I should pro­
bably suffer. 

I " 

. Subverting the Authorities by means of canes. . . 
O. You said the people w~re going to carry out their intentions 

~f rebellion by meants of canes p 
./ A. Yes, to be armed properly. " 

Q. I have just been asking tbe question probably according 
,to you there was some orginisa.tion behind the movement. So 
take . it there was some intelligent people who were directing the­
movement: do you think any man of sense could think of ub--
vetting the a:uthoritie by means of canes? t 

. A. A small ar~y of men armed with canes. It i ~uile po ibl~. 
Q. Do you think Ihis organised mob could successfully. under 

any conditions be oppo ed to the forces of the Crown. 
A. Not very long. In pl ' ee like Amritsar or elsewhere where 

the garrison is mall, then they ~ighl s~ddenly attack and disarm 
the military forccs and then havmg a httle Bucces they may even 
get them over to their side. 

. But it wont last long ? 
A. 1 (10 not think so but a great deal of damage might be done 

in the mean while. 
Q Were you not told on the 11th tbat it was a vel' smaU 

proportion of tbe inhabitant of Amritsar, wbo were causing di order 
and th t there was a large number of citizens who were law-abiding l' 

A. 1 migbt have been told. But there were very large crowd . 
Therefore It looked as if a great many people had joined them 
becau e law and ord r was at an end. There would have been 
lot of men who if Ihey were guarded would not ha\e bc:en di loyal . 
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EXdmint'd by • fro Ju ti e Rdnkin wimc said Martial La~ 
\Yd' proclallned Il'l K ur on the 16lh Aplil. It \\' s M rdal Law 
01 malice No 1 

Q; Have you been able to colltet allY definil e evidence as to 
whdl it Wa that ca.u ed I be e iternellt that broke out in a riot 
011 the 12lh? . 

A: \V ell, 00 I he 11th I here wa the neW b ut Mr. G, ndhi's 
alle.1 which incr a cd Ihe excilem"m. Th n they h d a {I1oeting 
011 the IlIh and people were mOle tXCiled after that. Ed~ly in the 
mornin$ of I he 121 h they tarted ml'vin about in lhe town and 
the' gOl mme and more excited. 'I h I hen rrived at the t tion 

lid the ('xci{ ment \ 5 uch that they did"" at they h d done. 

Q. On you attribute it to I he ne bein I ecdved of what 
h,lI'peneri 1 Amril .If and L hore on Ihe loth? 

A: I do nol think th- I \ a ver I I ely the cau e. II the 
ni~ht of I he I Ith I hey only heard vaguely of what h d happ lied at 
Allin\. oil alld Lahule. 

it ne. atd: One Hind" ",Iearler id I hat t ht' 
'UIW meri attie' 10 (he eye of Government. He 
• t \ like a rope round I heir neck. and lin. 1 houJd s, y in t" ,t I Ie of excilement of I he crowd he tlU ht II t to have said 
tl! II. t hould al 0 mention itt thaI lime he h d nev , actn,lIy 

I he Ro\ Ian Bill but had only ell it in the Tribllu. That 
a \ y gre t r pOosibility nd It h) ed thdl he relied 11 

di I"ned ver iOIl 10 the pubhc pre. He never ;Ittemp' d to tell 
It em wh.tt tht' Act really w . He simply implied there wus 
"lilt" hillJ( II rrihle in il. That W Ihe effect on I he crowd. 

) : re y of tbe ~ pl~ uier rre ted 011 ch'rg of 
II I I t'J 1l1~ el1il ion. 

A : 0, nooe except tho t' mentioned. 
LalJ Onanpatrlli was arre led at the martial I. w plod ""Itiun, 

h u the higher uthoritiea came '0 lhe conclU Ion that he was 
\: ill inK I rouble • nd he wa remo\'ed ~ r metime. fro 01 m 
.1"hluddin and Mr. Ab ul K der lVert' ane ted fIr lr \'ing t ken 
,,,rl ill lire dot. 

t} : Ap. r( from rin by th,. , .Idi r. who wert: attilckec(, 
I , " 1l",IIV tim dit1 the Police or the 111!lary Itrf: ( 

\: 'The 1i1i ~:lIY never ,ed. except the tw.. hu s by 
I,e ~~ 1I • 

( : l n h Vi many octa ion wa there firing? 
.. \: When they were ju l bout 10 burn the T hit That 
th.e onl ceca ion. I not there at the time. 

b 
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Q: As fllr as . you observed, was any distil~ction made between 
respectable aud lower class men as regal ds pUDlshment for breaches 
of martial law order? . 

A: If a man wa of respectable class be was fined, anri if of a 
lower clas he was probably whipped. 1 am goiug actually otl the 
case supplied to me. 

g: As regards the school boys that were whipped, you said 
the school authorities theruselve werc~ not doing we\ ? 

A: Ye. 
_: I did II0t quite catch the meaning of that expres ion. 
A: The Head Ma rer was an old feeble ~ort of man, quite 

unable to keep order nd one of the masters had actually b(,en found 
(0 be leader of mob and he processIon in the city during the 
disturbances and we all were very doubtful as to the attitude of the 
other chool master. At least, they did dot seem to be in a hurry 
to punish h ir stu eDt for taking pan in the riot. And a large 
nlaJ rity of the boys were rUllOing about, taking part. Then the 
school m ter s id : kindly give me military guard, my boys are very 
in ubordinate. . 

: In ubordmate to their schoolmaster ? A: I sup,pose so. 
: The boy had been cheating him or something yeu knew 

they wer doing by way of disorder? 
A: 1 took his meaning to be that they were still under great 

e. citemeOl and could cau e mi chief. • 
: \Vhat was the da te approximately? How long after the riot? 

A: I hould think it was about 6 days after. He waked to 
select 6 boy -aud the master of the other chool. But the re ult 

that b bo were produced who were obviously of the lower 
cia being b dly clothed. The Military fEcer id you must not 
e) ct miserable p imen. 

: 0 t ho e boy were rejected. 
A: Ye. The H Id Master ould not elect anyone. The 

bo them elves 'ere told to select. Anyway, 6 other boy were 
th elected. 

"",,: How m oy tripe were then given ? 
A; The oi boy 6 e ch nd the 3 mall boy 3 each. 

It to m ke Ka ur f· 11 in Iiue in the passive re ist nee 
m eOlent ? A: That the idea. 

: Not with a 
<..mll;ror ? 

iew to instig te to rise again t the KiLf 

.'\: I think there \ a pre ure of th tort. At Palti there 
w. a t;egul r ystem by which Ie tures were delivered and people 
\vere c. ci ed. One of th se men id, 'You bould obey the King 
but not hi ervaut.·/ 
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Continuing witne said one chool bo had been sentenced 
(0 be hanged. 

What was I he age of I he boy? 
A. 17 years. I think it wa merely tbe almo phere of ex~ite­

ment which wa the cal) e. They could not help them elves. 
CODtinuin . witne said t Patti 1 were convicted and IS 

acquitted. f the e 31, 14 wele enten ed to be whipped. At 
Ka ur 0 were con i ted and sentenced to be hipped, but in 11 
40 were whipped. There were 4 men of P lli who ere whipped 
by order of the fficer Comm ndin and 6 cool boy. The total 
number f tripe w 5 710 0 I bal th~ vera e wa J tripes for 
each individual. 

_. To what ca te did the belong to ? 
A. 1 understood they were of the lower c\ s. I never 

actually aw. 
Q: Of what age? 
A: Except the 5chool boy they were all of m ture ge. 

Three chool boys were of J 6 to 1 years and other three were of 
13 Qr 

Q. : \Vhy were Ihey punished ? 
A: Th~ headm ler a ked the . C. the boy. were etting 

in ubor inate and a ked if he could h ve milit Ty help. The . C. 
thought he could not give military help and he thought tb L 
whippin was the be t thmg. 0 he c lied the boys and ot them 
whipped by a ikh drummer boy. Moreover the hool autboritie 
were them elve not doing weI\. 

Q: Where were Lhey whipped? A: 1u t outside the 
tation entrance. 

: In public ? A : Ye. it wa in the pre eoce of the 
\ hoi; school. 

There was 00 whippin in the chool premi s? : No. 
What wa the object? A: There wa no particular 

_. \VeTe it given in serious case 01 for all lorts of of'rence ? 
A: All sorts of ca . For rioting or burning of eat tion. 

I remember 4 or 5 were whipped bee u e they had trespassed into 
a woman' ppartmeot, or 3 had a aulled the Lambardar and a 
Jarge number for mi cellaneou offence. • 

Q: Did this whipping take place in public or private? 
. A: I have explained they were hipped on the tation 

platform which as then the Military headquarters. The> platform 
as clo ed to tbe public at that lime, so it 15 a question whether it 

pri . te or public, They could not be en by people outside • 

• - • • ## 
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: id all the whipping take place there? A: 
[LAHaR 

e. They 
ea e \ hieh were;\I on the stalion platfrom, execpt only in ODe 

migh have been eeo. 
Q: Did you make inve tigations into certain rumour CIS t 

the cau e~ of the un,en u(.11 a recruitinfl? 
A: Ye, 1 was very careful to find ,out about t hat. I found 

there \Va ab olutely DO cau e for complaint in ony re peCL In 
f,ICl, il wa uch a backward place that there was no recrlliting at 
all. The number of recruit wa extremely small, 

Q: Were the cau e of unrest connected in any way with 
recruit iog? 

A: I do oot think, it was at all. 
_: During the administration .of martialla~t', there wete t 0 

ea e of where men vere shot b eotTle? 
A: Y Oil ca e wa at the !>tation. The Briti h entry at 

the 5loitioll entrance a someolle creeping ron .lrd. There w 
a du t tOlm at the lime and it was difficult to ee hOI mallY people 
were there, The entryeh I\enged the mall repeatedly in English 
ad in rdll, but received no answer and the man ran to\ <lrd 

hi . The entry tried to catch the m 0 but he eluded 'tim. So 
h fired and the mdn wa kill d. It wa aften aTd foutld th .. t the 
man wa deaf alld dumb. It wa an unfortunate incident. 111 the 
other Cd e. which happeued in a VIllage, I wa not pre ent. , 

0: Were any complaint m <le regarding the adlJlini tration 
o mdrllal linv ? 

A: There \Va! no complai nt wh lever at the time. Capt in 
I ovetoll eemed to b extremely popular. He eemed to ather 
people rOllnd him and to t Ik and chat with them. BlIt righ t 
tow.ud the end of hI tIme whell f nial L IV had been removed 
r III K ur prop r. there were one or twO who com~l .. il1ed th"l he 

w' doing thlll they did not like. \Vh t happened was C ptain 
n did nOl like to 0 throu h the f",rlO lities of trial and en­

lC~1 ; he wan led t do lhin mfllaril. He used t make 
pe pie . r lime and climb ladders, Even thal wa not complain-

d of b' tbe I)eople al the lime. They eemed to be very amu ed 
hit. 1hey did liar re~ard I[ d an et of tyranny. There \ one 
thin \ 1\\I'h 1 Ihou h 10 be eriou. A 'adhu had been while ­
wa~h d by the Marti I L w dmini tr IQr. Hut'l ked him a 

, it ,lIld he dill Il \ not true:. 
\\' a a affuld ereete in public ? A : y~. 

) . Had you ontemplated e ecutiou ill public? 
A: Th t \ the ide . 
0:' That Wi· ab,ludoned? A : \ e tarted puttin it up on 

the 3rd r ~a' but n the 91h 1ay 'overoment ordered it to be 
lem "d. ~ that time it \ Dot completed. 
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0: The practice of ~xe uli n in pl1bli' ha been long 
in dl U e? 

A: Ye, but I he id .. a wa. to have it UI) th~ lclua\ ~ ene of 
' he 1\ IJrcfer of tho e twO IV rr lit officer . 

Col: Macrae Was Re ponsibJe. 
Q: Who \\1 .. re p 11 ibl tnr thi ? 
A: Colone Macrae W;!'. re pHI ible. He .,. I he ollicer 

«)tIltllanding at 1\:a tlr at thai lime. 
He look ov r harge of ·l1b·di\'i-onai )nic .. 1 hip (\:1 the e\'enill 

or 1 he 15th. He never he.Hd Ilhtt any ,H,turbilll t' wa. C' II I'd 
hv I he 1:1 )wd dfler 3 p.m. on t he 11th. .-\1\ r p.rn. !lOI hill ~ 
c(urred in the cit\-. 11 wa~ quiet . 

Q: Y u \vere al. 0 infoflnd t h' t I he pollee were. ble to 1Il.lke 
:1 rrt! ( ,n t he Il1h it elf?- : 011 Ihe I Ih . 

Q: You \\ .. re n I infloll1 d th~t ,IIlV P Itee 0 he f \V re 
-aullecf on I he IZlh or ub equctll ddle ? 

A: Attempt were certainly made to a :1II1t. On I he J:Zt h 
thetmob endeavour d to burn do\~n the teh il ,md ., '-;uh·ll), r ctor 
of po lie wa allacked and the ~Iullsif Wd tan,ling on the loof of 
t he hou~e ,md I he crowd Wei gOlllg tCl burn 

0: Did anyone of the Ih se oflici.1l~ v~r make r p rt to 
vnu iilal tin attempt wa made to a ault I h'-Ill ! 

A :' 1 do n,.l I hink n. 
): A CCOldill to the (;)\'crlllllent C t~ • althou,h thu e two 

oldle-rs at I he tatlOlI empti cf I he chamb rs or the I volv r they 
to not do any d.tmd~e to the cro.vd ? 

.'\: (ne OIan wa Injured. 
~ iln~~ explain d that an inf<Hmer '.I;d th.tt the olrlier ned 

me lound tir t then aODl her and then .1Il If h I. BUI .lOoth r 
m n. a IllraCWr, ~ id that they fired con Id r ble lIulllb r of 
1 und . 

Q: Thi report i pr ctlcally ." (Ih tr.tct of tit report which 
ynn ~ubmitted in )\1 di free to I he circular i !It'd by the Liellten, nt 
'Governnr ?-A: YI! .. 

0: Ilhle of mention;n that the 
yOll 4 id here :-The crowd followeti tt nd ill ide it w re two 
varraOl offi er , • They 0 out lind t 0(1 ill I he dOlJr f the r· 

ri J;e. The crowd were ............... b lit 60 yard off throwin • 
• ton on the t YO men. ne fell on the two men. Th y I t 
thei r heads nd fire all round. without doin~ any dam e.' his 
t· temeFlt wa m de to the Lieutenant Governor in June or 
Tulv ?-. : Yes. • 

Q: I think it wa a true version of hat was your knowledge 
hen .• A: Up to that time tbat W 5 correct. - . • • • # 
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Q: SO far as ~our knowledge goe none of the mob was 

killed at the railway tation ?-A : No. 
g: Were you informed in the cour e of the inve ligation 

that an aUe at ion was made, that previous 0 what happeoed . t 
the e two soldiers twO persoo were killed? 

A : I never heard of any ueh thing. 

The O. I . D. Report 
Proceed ing witness sa,d that n ne of the ot her oldiers except 

these two had al ms. He proclaimed malli,,! law at Kasur b\' 
holding a Durbar. Dhanpal Rai wa~ arre ted lht' e under Col 
Macrae' order. \lVltne~ delivered no speech then. The .af!,e of 
Dhanpat Rai was 60. He was IJOt a I ader of the bar to his know­
ledge. At the time of hi arre t I here IV,l no iofon.lation a t 
his commit(inf!, any offence 011 the 12th. So far as hi~ infor· 
mation IV nl hi arre't \ a n ot due to any action on his pa t '11 
the 1211. IT'hl" Commi iOIl r em order dlrectin~ that he shnulj 
be an 1 removed from there. He wa nr.t arrt' ted for 
takiog par III I he holTtal meet "If!, of I he I II h H~ h I a hl:tck 
record and wa con idered t be a d31ll:(eroU m an. H IV.! 

father-In.law of a man who tl ied tn foment rrSIOIt am n) I"OOP 
(Ajil ingh, who \Va deported in IQ0 7 with L:lh Laip.l· R i,. 

ne Hahim Bux W;lS deputed to take down Ill')leS of the 
. pee he al the meeting oC the lIth . From ~h3t repOlt thev 
would find that , 0 fal 3 the prlneio I speaker \Verc~ concerned. 
except one t hey were tryin~ to pacify the rowd and I ha their 
peeeht' \ ere moderate. He drJ not o1ceep the report. The 

man did not give him allv II1formalioll 3')(lUt the peeche. 
Have you read Gener,\1 Beynons order. 

A : .bout the 0\ laa Act? 
0: Not Ro\ I It Aet hUI \1 rtial law, A: I have read it. 

H ave you read I he deuce of India :\ t. 
A: 1 have read it. 

D(l Oll r m mber I he provi ion? A: I f\ I et. 
o YOll know what \ ere the tlVO important (CI th t 

wer ed bel \ eell I QO and I Q I ~ amendlllg the Pen.!1 Code? 
I cannot lell you the details no\ . 

o Oll know h t hev lVere bout? 
\ hich Act ou re peaking bO.ll? 
rhe rent mendment, of th I. P. C. 
J r lIect no particular ch n e . 
1 think you will a ree \ ith me that at Ie t in a majorit 

of the pI ce all o \'er the world in e\'erv pe>lilical agil tion people 
ta e th Ir ue fro~ the leaden and it i (or e\'fOry one of tbe rauk 
an 6te ( tud. all politic 1 que lion . to read all et and 0 

come to concl.l iOIl ? 
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A: .r do. Q: Therefore I think no crime was committed 
by the e moffu illeader livin in K ur where there is no politic I 
life-

}Vitnes interrupting id - There i politi I life drslinctiy-
_: You will not blame them if the dopted the view th t 

\ a put fo rward befo re,l hem b t h ir 0 n pre and by their 
OWIl leader ? .. 

A : It 15 fooli h irre. pon ibility. 
Q. YOlil ex. eneoce of your 0 11 cou nt ry i th ., t very ne 

of the rank and file shollid r rm PIIlIOIl on t he em t ter • nd 
tud every political p ro 1m? • 

A: ' I do n Ol c II them r:lUk 11\11 file. There ar three men 
who \ ele ~en on Con re . Th y ,re by n III os rank 
and file fh .. y ,re le,1 I., I e on ible le:lder o r hev houlet b 
re P"ll Ible Ie der . 

\Vllne~!I tided that he id they were Ie ders of lh h rIal' 
m \'ement b"CHI e the admitted o. 

h l he hopke per lVellt to t hem and, ill I L II ha'e 
m~e 109 an me pet'c ~'e,' lhlt d e not hOI that t he were 
Icader: of the h n I movement? 

A: T he leader .11 0 I hed to have h rt.\. 
): III YOllr OWl! c Hllltly you lhlOI th men of lhe r Itlon 

of III e pleaders do n t rely up III wb t view i I ken by im por­
t fit paper. like the" rllne ., or hy towerltlll p r n liti lilt, . y, 
GI dstone, bllt e\'ery one of them reOld avery ct. lid l ud ie 
que [inn .m 1 form r p II ible OpiOiOIl ? 

A: 't hey are cert lilly e ler informed nli l k trOt hie 
to tudy-

(): That i due to the difference in edllc t i 0 in Iodl. 
al\d 'wE o la Id? A: To orne extent. 

"No RespoD Ible GoverDmeDt in India.." 
_: -\ ntllhe dlf]erellc~ th t there I re pon Ible Iwernmenr 

l hele ,mel I here i no r pon ible • vemme"L i n rndi ? 
1 d ;, n l think til t affect 1(, 

1 it not fact t h t II lhe. e pIe der who \V r 
were ~ever br ught to tri I were arro t rl hee u the 

uthorhie v llIeoi to kill political lite In th wh ole province and 
bee u e t hey h ve tak n part in t he rnee ri n~ on the J Ilh 
alth1lugh Ih t rne li n w a moderilte meeting? 

: Lal Oh np t Rai wh O' wa arr ted did not II I eak t all 
nd the 01 h~r t~ 0 aHc 1 d were not a rre ted for t hat at all. 

_ In 13rement you id that all the thin I done by 
1 rtlal L u ho ritie ere reli hed nd aporov/ld of- by the 
eople. Are you till of the opintoo lh the people reli hed 
and ploved of 1111 th thing ? A : bviously •• 

• • • 
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From .!.v ruber 1918 to _ pril IQtq did the anthorili '. 
to your knowled~ .. , tak any 'fOp 10 m"t't. acoording 10 nn, 
(al e rumnur ? 

A: Th y riid no t do. Q: Y 011 did not blame I hem . I 

II 1 doio~ il ? 
A: J wa nOI th reo I did not hlame .. 
L: But you hi me I h pi ar.l'r? A: Y , f r-in. 
<.:nntinuing VII ne~ said thaI GhlllaOl MohY-lIo din h,d did 

al Iht" m"elio,;: of Ihe, Il1h Ihat th HindI! and ~iu alman hacl 
on ht"ad, two hand, I \YO feel ~nci I h Y hOllld act a. one mall. 
Thi wa I he wor t s .. nt n e in I he oplOion of Mr. ~1ar den in 
the peeche ,leliv red at tiV' meetilljl. • 

Q: You have lal .. d th:1I the Olilllary allihoritie . were all '. 
d to ttl) to the viii Ill' to arr .. I pe pit', have ou lIot? 

Til y er a\lowen to tllke tep tne cou-irlerel1 nece . ar '. 
_ ho g. ve th rn informali"n ? 

: JI\~ rtllaliOIl \Y,I. given to I he poli e and I hev inform d 
the milit ry of thar. 

Did t h I infl')rmal ion cout ain name ? A ~ Ye. 
And t h.lt informatIon was reliable infol matioll? A. Ye . Q; That in~ rmalion wa laken do 0 in writin ? 

A: J "Xl t, O. 
~ ~ And 011 Ih ha i of Ih t information a \'ery large ollmher 

of a r .. I wer e Illdne ? A: Ye. 
: All tho e arre t were mali bel\ een 12 in the ni~hl 

nd 4 or ~ ill t~H~ morninR? A: Ye . . 
C): Any ho lage' lakt!1l from I" viII g ? 
A; I thiuk ome w .. r take'n Irom Patti . They wer not 

rought I () Kd ur. 
Th re wa ,nnlelhiu like! C l1.e out ide the r ilw. >' 

t tUlII? A: 
P ndit i: l think t celt lIin I illlt!s I he n.lmber of I er ns in· 

ide his c., w 107 rIO, ? 
: r do nOl thmlc. il III'a more than 70 or 1 am no-

quile ,ur .- _: ThC'y nuld be cell by I he puhlic ?-A: Ye. 
. W r the pleader rr t~d, handcuffed and lak" 

th u I th b Z I ? 
Ye ,they wt!rc h ndcufferl and.l ken fo the r itwa • 

t lion.-_: Why wa Dhanpat R i handcu t!d? 
Ther W • tale r rebellion and you mu 1 lake ,rec u-

olll 

t ken hand cuffed. 
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"Fancy Punishments," . 
Q: 0\ h III the fancy UIlI hmelll \ 011 have d crilled do ,y II 

'11ellll If a per 'on n med IO ~ h Oa. w .• ~ lll.Jde tIl tlr.lw liue with 
hi. 10.e for iI period of tio.e ?-. : (n paller? 

Pandilji: N \. nil p.tper, bill 011 round. Hi noe is !lot. 
pencil (Lat1~hter.) A ; 1 hav .. TIm h!".lul or th , 

Q: Do y '/ remern tor I hal a per. 11 \V,I . v'Hded \ hi . fallt:' 
PUOI tlln III for purdy -ing Ii'" ill Ill. re I h .. n 4 . t' r ,. rup!"e ? 

A: ~o I can't Ie I )'IIU, 

Q: 'ere nnt CI r'il !) 1I11 .ii . ". \1I~t' they 
IV r Arya .'am'lji I ? 

A: I ~n Ar>'a S maji I "I ne.led P.1l i 
Ihe .-\r\' a 'Il'ldj\.t invilt'ci "IV I Jm'l)i I ,ollle 
I clure: ~J)d I he poht:e .. rrC' It'd. rn flv 01 "IX or them h~c. liM! 

'he \1(\li<.:e ~,id I hltt \ he hAd h"t'll promOI illg eli .. \ UI b.,n.: 
Q: \V.t ,tlly ('\'ident:!: produc d ,,'aill,t I hem? \V 

ha e a m In rtll\dum of tll!:ir leclure , 
A!lcl what i, I he vor t lhinlt I h.lt ynu 'et' there? 
Tnl" W r I lhlllj( th I J hav~ "" i 1111, "YOII llIu"t obey 

s: hUI lIol t he Ki,,~' n'anh' J: \ "hen yon ~ily that the ci"il :Iut h lrilit' were not ble 
tn eh ck what wa. heltlJl done Oil th I :tll, I it 111)1 a f· I thal 
the evil uthOlil1 . wer infor mer! \cor \' blt"'nd pr'll'tie lly h 11 

th y arrivcori t'vt>ryl hin~ Wt/ o\er? 
A: Th .. rlOI had I.,ken phlce dn.i the (/II d conLi Ullc.:d the 

york f r!t'~[rocti(ln. 
ConI iii III II£: the wit Ill'. 

;:II ion b11lldlllg, .mll ",h n 
'\ b·Oivi lOll I ffieer, I It CroWl' hlld rI:IIIl., 

t ion. 1 h d<lntai,e Wt/~ IIOf dOli 

were pr ell! t I h ... 1 al ion. ~imil rl wh.1I h 10 II pp 
Ire.,. "ry 1I11d (he teh II wele al 0 d(lllC when Ih", i\'il ut"oritie 
vere II I .pI!: ('III, ,\ .(~Il a Ihe Sub-l>lvi londl Ollie arrived 
I ~,.ve oruel tn fire. A rt lilt of lhe hrillg the mob di pelu:d. 
, me .ev II or to; hI ,\ere ar r led and ',me el her. vere t ken in 

Cll IOOy h C-d II e I hey Were wound d, Th w. .. :\hrlial Law 
order I Ilt"d ayiug, th.l (.f .ill thn e p r 0 115 whl W Ie re idC:lIt 
and h d ne .. ~\~ y d'd IIn( r!'turn 10 K a II r wfhin a fix.ed time 

methlO would be dOll. to Ihelr property, \Vltnes rdi ed 1)0 • 
nhjection In the order but in i led on it bee u e he wanted ho e 
~r n who had mwrdered olher • Among Ihe names of ul tders 
IYhn were pre I'nt nn tne 12th wa one 0 nj Ram of Amm ~al 
ud anOlh r who w adhn also of Amrit ar. 1'hll SCldhu, 
itne s belie\'e, ahuys lived at Amrit ar, ExCept the e two, he 

wa n able Iq Irace any ot er person. He did not. con ider the 

•• • • 
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of flogging or shooting, do 'ou think that rhe crimes will 
down to a very large ext n" and ould that be reas n fqr the 
enforcement and maintenance of M rtial Law? 

.A : I looked at it and I don't find that the number of crimes 
is going down. 

Q: Then, there' no nece itv for [rtial Law ? 
A: The re nee of the troop wa to keep th ~m from how­

ing lho e tendencie vhieh they therwi e would h w. For 
in '(ance if there i 'harlal' to-morrow they wOllid be very much 
emryoldened to create orne trollble. 

Q: Then, do YOll m~an lha: thc::re i nece it for 1ani,,1 
Law even no ? A: I think o' 

0: ',> 10 order to enfo,ce order the m IIltenance of 
Man~ I Law i ilb.olutely nece If ? 

A: No, 1 S., the illl.li(II1 a~ :my moment may prove to 
be dang-erau • 

0: Even OIY the ~il II tion j, I h' arne? 
.~: Not the 5arne but. till d II1g rou 
WHne 5 e ltilllling ai I thaI he IV . not again t holdi ng 

politi al meeting bllt 'tgain t 'hart"l,' practically the 'ha rt. \' 
at Kasur WilS o,ought about by pre .Ire f,om Olll ide. \Vitne! 
beheved that 'ha,tal' \\1\5 g rUIl\! 10 be ab :>Iutely indefinite 0 long 
a lh Revolutionarv CrImes A!;t W .I Ihere. 

_ ThrnuJ,!hout the whole of the PUlljab no tli turbanee or 
wire-cutting .took place after lhe I Ih \0 tilt. A: That i o. 

P IIdiJji: Thc::refo'l! I ho lid like to know why if M, flial 
L, IV neces 3ry in 'he fir t ill tauct', it wa, nece ary to 
continue it after thac dal e. 

Bec u e the me call e which h d cau d the int ro uc­
t ' n of llle Law were till in exi tence. The narclllC. I cri me 
are till ill exi 'ence. 1r. G\IIlh\ i till In exi tenee. 

_: Ye'. I hive he rd lh l rev IlIttclnary crime are st ill in 
exi tellee, if. Gandhi i no! de d, f< owlal ct i not dedd 'l\nd 

far a India i conce rned you are f,f opinion Ih I (or lie 
m i. tenance of peace • nd ordc:r enforeem nl of M rtial L w 
mu t be always kept ready? 

r\: It hopld be ready ecau e ultimately a\l authority 
depend 00 rorce ? 

P nd ltj. :-1 kno v th t philo ophic I propo,ition. Theil-
o rar a India i concerned vou re or opinion th 1 the ma; ten­

eQJ:c: peace and order tiepenrf upon the u e or f, rcl'! and the 
niea nrc which the overnmenr have not already av iled it elf or: 

That is the c e ill every country.. • 
Have you ever found nywhere el e th t Martia1 Law 

roduced in the e circumstance ? 
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A: I ciie!II't say' Martial Law. I only said that all au!horitv' 
depe-rlel' on fOl ceo 

J: Are yNI in favour of Khilafat movement j (Lau lit r.) 
A: Klli afat movement? H ow can I say that. • 
TIT t! PJ'('sidl'1lt "rN' iI111'l'tH'lIrd /lTld IIIf qllt!stl()Il'W(H dropped. 
• I>() you know anything about Cr ' ninal 3\ Am no. 

n III ACl rn of (I 0 ) 
A : 0 j nOlhlllg about it. I had not orne to India at I hat 

lim!" (J oR .) 
.: Wh n die! y u came to India? A: 1912. \Viwe 

did 1I0t know t h-: provi ion of t he Criminal Law A end­
menl ACl. 

2: Being a fir I c1a~~ ma~i lIale enlru ted wfth the live. 
and Jih rli • of the J IIdian public how I it t h t you did not know 
31lythlll Ul the pr()vision of the Act with which you ha\'e 
\0 de I II flvery.day life and 'et YOII blame at the ame [im(' 
t I I fa pIe ders were n t quite conver nt wit h '( he provi ion 
fll '()\vlll Act i' 

. I wa n ot making a peech about the riminal Law 
• rn"nelrnent Act, a the pleader were doing on the Ro\ lalt ct. 

_: Tiler fore 011 m a1l rhat a man who i making a Slle ch 
hould he mOle care-fill th<ln 3 mdll who deal with the live and 

liherti .... oflhe penple? (Laughter.) 
. . Y IIr). gic e m 10 ht: del'-Clive. 

o PTAIN DOVETON. 

u h ramour being t rt d? 
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A:. 1 can't. The mo t that I did was to order the convict­

ed men to put their forehead on the grouud before me, h wa 
imply 1<> mclke the people ackn wledlte the authority, but not 

depullishment, • 
Q: Did you ever hear it mrtde d a compldilll? A: Yes. 
Q: 'Vh~n was. the J!t::oeral ordt:1 1 elaxlIllZ I he 1Mti,\1 L IW 

'rd .. , i sue ? A: They II ere relaxed by degree. 
Q: I utlpo e the public of KcI ur would h ve b eo on i-

derdolY illcollvenienced by some of th e order A: Ye. 
Q: Particularly in I he Cd e of t he order abtlut t hl\'elltog ? 
A: That wa relaxed before lIy ot he, 01 de, ? 

Did yo I yourself delive, lecture to the pe pIe of K ur? 
A: Y.s. I delivered lecttlre. 011 the gene' I ituatioll 

and tried (0 make them ee thing in their true per pecli"e. In 
lacl, it was more in the nature of .dvice, 

Q: Had you made your elf f.lmi liar I ith the provL ion of 
the Rowlatt ct? 

A: J WOuld not h.we been ao ulhority on thdt. Bul the 
maUl POiOl f my lect ure was to how that there W.I redll' no 
K,e hard h,p io pa iog the Rowlall Act, and th 'll whatever 
liar hip ,t involve, did not ju tify the actiun (di turh nee) 
which took place, 

,. : eoer lIy yOIl discu ed the R wi. tt A (with "jew to 
lemu\'mg the u picioo to the pro ... i.! IJ~ that had an fOil ill 
Ih oeople'. mind owing to the rum Uf ? Ve th'lt was o. 

'_ :. [ lhink t h t at one of your lecture you Iud the i\ .. i • 
l.lll .. c:: of one of the pleaders ? 

A: Y , When I fini hed my lecture kect Maulvi 
(rhulam :f hiuddlO to mJke a few rern rk , 

<.) : Do you know why he w s arre ted? ( unclt'r land 
he w.c. arre ted I ithoUI • ny eh rg being m.de ain'l hilll, 

J : id he In ke:l peech acc rding to your ,ti f. 1io\1 

A: 

.-\ , 
~}, 
A. 
o 
(). 

atisfactory in e\'ery w, y, 
Were you pre eut at the lime of whippillg? 
\' e : in nearly all c' 
Uo you kn.,\ that .ome pe pi .. lIet'umbed to the injtll}' 
'ot to my kn "ledge, 

1 0 you know of any ca e of coll .. p e! A. I did not see! 
During YOllr tIme there \'1 n I ~hlppiog III the ublic 

~t,ti ? 
A, Il wa enurely private. Th re wt're three hoy, quite 

.. hi/d,en, whu were t'nt down by the pecial.Tribun ,/"at L .. hore 
tl. b I,ullished nd 1 thought [hilt 1C would be better if the 

h 1 boys at Ka ur ere resent to witue the wbipping. , 



uS EVJIJENCE OF C.1PT. IJOVETON: (LAHO" • 1)umber of ~. III one ca e· you administered a considerable 
lashes and al 0 two ye;;rs' rigorous imprisonment ? 

A'. The maximum imposed wa 2 years, 30 lashes ~nd Rs. 30 
:as fi ne. • 

. You uggest that "'the people jl;enerally did not ob ct 
to Martial Law.' How do you ;:ry that? 

A. Generally, the people expre ed ihemselves like that. 
In fact, I was told thaL the people appreciated Mar\ial Law more 
than any other. 

_. Did you a k anybody to do skipping? . 
A. A regard tbe kipping, it wa suggested to me by an 

accused per on. He came and told me he would do skiT' ping if 
he w s excused the punishmeut. The kipping wa :0 times 
without breaking. 

"",' He made that offer and you took him at his word? 
A. Y . 
L. A nd fter tbat you inflicted this kippiog punishment 

on tho who did not a k for it ?-A. Ye. 
f what age were the people who were made to kip ? 

hould ay people of middle ge. • 
Q. HOI much? A. 20 without break. 
). llow rn ny people d you think were given this punish-

mem?-. t lea t 20. 
· You ill agree with me that it rather tended to 'brio 

lh PIOC diull under contempt? 
A. 1 don't kn, that it brought the proceedin sunder 

cont mpt. It cted a a deterrant. 
· Ap rt from kipping wa there any punishment like 

clinlbing tbe ladder and other forms of manual labour? . e 
· It, aIle ed that orne adhu were order d to be 

llil ewashed by you a a peci I puni hmem ? 
A. That i not true. Among tho e \ ho were ent to work 

in tbe good shed ere m dhu nd. they h d to work at 
lim the \ re o. r d \ jth lime like that. 

• HOI m ny? A. I think four or 6ve. 
• ~ hat were ~he people guilt of for which they were 

punl1ed t work in the ood hed? 
· 1 Ql unable to tell ou that. . 

, 
o 

). It mil t be lor bein truCulenl or defiant and in additi n 
m Ihin to the r ilwa comp 0 ? A. rot necessarily. 

The m y have ommltted ome othe~ offence 7 
think it quite i I . 

1'h 11 'ou ay in your tatement that •. imila:- treatment 
w cd Gut to all per on \ ho thre teoed railway officials ...... 
and III d how of iolen e ...... I ? 



If a penon wa broulfht Wore me 
... il_ ........ ft'iI"i,.J With the ~ompl .. int that that person used th ......... 

Iaoluage or some thing of th t kind, I enquired into the 
aDd decided what wa to be done. • 

Q. So, if a pt;n.ou u ~d threatening language to a 
official, you sent bim to work for a day or (WO in lh gods 
10 the manner ),OU have described? . Ye. 

g, How ,any people were m. de to put theIr forehead 
the lround? Mu t be quite \. r e lIumb r? . Ye~. 

Q. A n,1 the offence ith hic;h t he were h rged 
~Yicted were of a var 'ill de'ree nail' vlty? A. o. 

Q. You dropped thi pllui.hment b cue people had ,..,,--"'''' ... 
\0 a rea.onable frame of mind? A. E'J th·. 

Q. \ a thi~ dOlle 111 order 10 induce a rea nable (rame 
mind? . 

A. I dOu't ay o. The IU in point wa to illlpres 
trnt people th t every dy wa n t hi own m ter ud th 
bad ~ot to 'ctmrorm to the I IV and order. 

Q. \Von thi not sufficiently don by convicting nd selllteJlc..·;XI.J 
in« t em? N. Ye. 

t Then why all the top of it did 'lou inflic the puni hmc'q8-~;I".l 
of puttin~ their forehe dOll the ground? 

A. 1 dun't think that it mut have been felt by them al 
humlfi:llioll. 

. H ve you ever ob erved in on.lill ry life uJ 
putulIg hi ~ rehead on the grouod in the Dlanner you insilt.IIt:;. 
90 t elT oing? A. 1 had ob erve thi dOlle to iI wealthy 

Q. I th lao rdin ry thin? I ve you e II it 10 
lif? I can well understand doing th before a t ligious 
or a aint: but have you ever en people in ordinary life 
lb15 before auy other per on. A. 1 h ve. 

. How of len have you en lhat, C pl \O? 
A. I am un ble to ay. 
Q. Then you pe k of the lecture you gave at Kasut ? 
A. Yes. 
Q. \rou ay you h u a tr iglll t.lk with them. What 

f Itraight talk? A. It wa all reported by the Police. 
9. Cao we et a copy of il? A. It hould be po 
Q. Thea with regard to whippin. You inflicted 

case? n. 1 think 10. • 

.Q. A. regards · reprisals again t property you visited 
aod ill lOme places you burDt the clothes, ·~.U'U"'_ 

~"'''_ls. Do you think that was justified by the 
? A. Yes; I do. 







, 
those proslilut 
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r not ? 



2'1 c. "9 BEFOIU HUNT8R CONNITTEE 
Q. You coniaered you elf ju tified io dOib; hat you 

without ti f jng your elf whether these men ere d(Jiberat~ly 
eepiog them selve a\ ay or not? 
. At this ta ge enel I Barto aid to President';' fy lord. 

may I poiot out he is lin officer ho did hi dut under ery 
trying circum, stances, Be is oot llll ordinary Climinal. 

Pandit.j atD rain : impJ becau e witn Ifl' 1 have 
dc-ue it .and I. am ju tiS bit', ' t i not my simple d ty to a cept 
it and nOI to, ift it, nd not to find ou hat tv e h ground 
on which 'he' felt himsel r ju tified-l do not think it is my duty 
to accept ever,lhin t · t the ' t .t r ,but my duty 1 
' 0 ift e round upon whi h beju t ' S hi clion, 

The Pre 'dent did n iot rer but ma Il to the 
the Pandit to go on, 

Witne .: There a DO time to do any ueh thin , 







' Oll C n idered th t lO 
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